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NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF
DIGITAL CUSTOCIAN COMPANY LIMITED
FOR APPROVAL OF SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND RECONS"’ RUCTION

In compliance with the order dated February 15, 2024, passed by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore
in Civil Original No. 9649/2024, this NOTICE for the convening of an Extraordinary General Meeting
(EOGM) of the shareholders of Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL), is hereby given to be held on
Saturday, March 16, 2024, at 9:30 A.M., at the registered office of the Digital Custodian Company Limited,
in the Auditorium at LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore, and virtually through a video link
facility to transact the following special business:

Agenda Item No. 1: To consider and if deemed fit, adopt, agree and approve the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction (‘the Scheme’) of LSE Ventures Limited (& its members) with and into
Digital Custodian Company Limited (& its Members), attached to this notice as Exhibit-l (including
Financial Statements of DCCL and LSEVL and Auditor’s SWAP Ratio Certificate for the Scheme).

Agenda Item No 2: To consider and to pass the Special Resolutions attached as Exhibit-ll to this notice,
with or without any modification, subject to the terms and conditions entailed in the Scheme.

Issued by the undersigned in compliance to the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore,
mentioned hereinabove.

Mr. Ahmad Hassan Butt Chaudhary Azlan Mehboob

Advocate High Court Advocate High Court

1* Floor, Naveena Tower Office No. 701, 7*" Floor, Land Mark Plaza
35-C, Gulberg lll Jail Road

Lahore Lahore

Date: February 23, 2024




) Q]

Lse DIGITAL
VENTURES AN

IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. Distribution List:

1) All shareholders of DCCL

2) The Board of Directors of DCCL

3) The Executive Director, Specialized Companies Division, SECP, Islamabad
4) Registrar of the Companies, SECP, Lahore

5) DCCL website at www.digitalcustodian.co

Closure of Share transfer Books: The share transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from
March 09, 2024 to March 16, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of attending Extraordinary
General Meeting. Transfers received in order by the Company, at the close of business on March 08,
2024, will be considered in time to attend the EOGM.

Statutory Explanatory Statement: The detailed explanatory Statement u/s 281(1)(a)/134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017, is attached hereto with the Notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company.

Inspection of Documents: Copies of the Scheme, statement u/s 281 of the Companies Act, 2017,
recent annual/quarterly accounts along with all published or otherwise required accounts of all
previous periods of the above referred companies along with financial details on swap ratio,
Memorandum and Articles of Association, requisite approvals and any other related information/
documents may also be inspected/ procured during the business hours on any working day at
Registered Office of the Company from the date of publication of this Notice till the conclusion of the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting.

Instructions for Attending the Meeting

1) All members entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint another person as his/her
proxy to attend, speak and vote for him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at
the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting. The CDC Accounts Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Proxy form is attached with this notice and also available at Company’s website i.e.,
www.digitalcustodian.co.

2) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the Regulations,
shall authenticate their identity by showing his/ her original National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or
original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

3) Inthe light of COVID-19 situation in the Country, the Company has made the arrangement for the
safety of the members attending the meeting physically. The relevant SOPs should be followed
strictly.
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6. For Appointing Proxies and Corporate Authorizations

1) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

2) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

3) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

4) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5) In case of corporate entities, board of directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form
to Company.

6) In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

7. Consent for Video Conferencing facility: Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 4 dated February 15", 2021,
Circular No. 6 dated March 3, 2021 and clarification issued by SECP dated December 15, 2021, the
Company has arranged video conference facility to ensure the participation of members in the general
meeting. Shareholders interested in attending the meeting through video conferencing are requested
to email the following information with the subject “Registration for EOGM” along with copy of valid
CNIC at info@digitalcustodian.co. Video link and login credentials will be shared with only those
members whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at least 48 hours before
the time of EOGM.

1. Folio No. / CDC Investors A/c No./ Sub-A/c No.:
2. Name of Shareholder:

3. Cell Phone Number:

4. Email Address:

5. No. of Shares held:

8. E-Voting & Ballot Paper for Voting through Post

1) E-Voting: The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Section 143-145 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018. Members will be allowed to exercise
their right to vote through the electronic voting facility or voting by post for the special business
in accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid
Regulations. For the convenience of the Members, the ballot paper is annexed to this notice and
the same is also available on the Company’s website at www.digitalcustodian.co for download.

2) Ballot Paper: The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper as per attached
format along with a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Co-
Chairmen of the meeting through post on the Company’s registered address, 19-Khayaban-e-
Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore or email at info@digitalcustodian.co, one (1) day before the Extraordinary
General Meeting. The signatures on the ballot paper shall match the signatures on CNIC.
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NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF
LSE VENTURES LIMITED
FOR APPROVAL OF SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND RECONSTRUCTION

In compliance with the order dated February 15, 2024, passed by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore
in Civil Original No. 9649/2024, this NOTICE for the convening of an Extraordinary General Meeting
(EOGM) of the shareholders of LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL), is hereby given to be held on Saturday,
March 16, 2024, at 10:00 A.M., at the registered office of the LSE Ventures Limited, in the Auditorium at
LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore, and virtually through a video link facility to transact the
following special business:

Agenda Item No. 1: To consider and if deemed fit, adopt, agree and approve the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction (‘the Scheme’) of LSE Ventures Limited (& its members) with and into
Digital Custodian Company Limited (& its Members), attached to this notice as Exhibit-l (including
Financial Statements of DCCL and LSEVL and Auditor’'s SWAP Ratio Certificate for the Scheme).

Agenda Item No 2: To consider and to pass the Special Resolutions attached as Exhibit-ll to this notice,
with or without any modification, subject to the terms and conditions entailed in the Scheme.

Issued by the undersigned in compliance to the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore,
mentioned hereinabove,

Vg

Mr. Ahmad Hassan Butt Chaudha‘ry Azlan Mehboob

Advocate High Court Advocate High Court

1% Floor, Naveena Tower Office No. 701, 7'" Floor, Land Mark Plaza
35-C, Gulberg llI Jail Road

Lahore Lahore

Date: February 23, 2024
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. Distribution List:

1) All shareholders of LSEVL

2) The Board of Directors of LSEVL

3) The Executive Director /HOD, Offsite-1l Department, Supervision Division, SECP, Islamabad
4) Registrar of the Companies, SECP, Lahore

5) The General Manager, PSX

6) PSX-—PUCARS

7) LSEVL website at www.Ise.com.pk

2. Closure of Share transfer Books: The share transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from
March 09, 2024 to March 16, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of attending Extraordinary
General Meeting. Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar, i.e., F.D. Registrar
Services (Private) Limited, Suit 1705-A, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower, |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
at the close of business on March 08, 2024, will be considered in time to attend the EOGM.

3. Statutory Explanatory Statement: The detailed explanatory Statement u/s 281(1)(a)/134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017, is attached hereto with the Notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company.

4. Inspection of Documents: Copies of the Scheme, statement u/s 281 of the Companies Act, 2017,
recent annual/quarterly accounts along with all published or otherwise required accounts of all
previous periods of the above referred companies along with financial details on swap ratio,
Memorandum and Articles of Association, requisite approvals and any other related information/
documents may also be inspected/ procured during the business hours on any working day at
Registered Office of the Company from the date of publication of this Notice till the conclusion of the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting.

5. Instructions for Attending the Meeting

1) All members entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint another person as his/her
proxy to attend, speak and vote for him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at
the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting. The CDC Accounts Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Proxy form is attached with this notice and also available at Company’s website i.e.,
www.lse.com.pk.

2) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the Regulations,
shall authenticate their identity by showing his/ her original National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or
original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

3) Inthe light of COVID-19 situation in the Country, the Company has made the arrangement for the
safety of the members attending the meeting physically. The relevant SOPs should be followed
strictly.
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6. For Appointing Proxies and Corporate Authorizations

1) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

2) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

3) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

4) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5) In case of corporate entities, board of directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form
to Company.

6) In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

7. Consent for Video Conferencing facility: Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 4 dated February 15", 2021,
Circular No. 6 dated March 3, 2021 and clarification issued by SECP dated December 15, 2021, the
Company has arranged video conference facility to ensure the participation of members in the general
meeting. Shareholders interested in attending the meeting through video conferencing are requested
to email the following information with the subject “Registration for EOGM” along with copy of valid
CNIC at info@Ise.com.pk. Video link and login credentials will be shared with only those members
whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at least 48 hours before the time
of EOGM.

1. Folio No. / CDC Investors A/c No./ Sub-A/c No.:
2. Name of Shareholder:

3. Cell Phone Number:

4. Email Address:

5. No. of Shares held:

8. E-Voting & Ballot Paper for Voting through Post

1) E-Voting: The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Section 143-145 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018. Members will be allowed to exercise
their right to vote through the electronic voting facility or voting by post for the special business
in accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid
Regulations. For the convenience of the Members, the ballot paper is annexed to this notice and
the same is also available on the Company’s website at www.lIse.com.pk for download.

2) Ballot Paper: The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper as per attached
format along with a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Co-
Chairmen of the meeting through post on the Company’s registered address, 19-Khayaban-e-
Aiwan-e-lgbal, Lahore or email at info@Ise.com.pk, one (1) day before the Extraordinary General
Meeting. The signatures on the ballot paper shall match the signatures on CNIC.



mailto:info@lse.com.pk
http://www.lse.com.pk/
mailto:info@lse.com.pk

) Q]

Lse DIGITAL
VENTURES AN

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST/E-VOTING

At the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of
held on Saturday, March 16, 2024, at

to be

Auditorium of LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore.

a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company, in the

Contact Details of the Co-Chairmen, appointed by the honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore at which the
duly filled in ballot paper may be sent:

Business Address: The Co-Chairmen

Designated email address: info@

C/o Company Secretary of

LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore.

Name of shareholder/joint Shareholders

Registered Address

Number of shares held and folio number

CNIC Number (copy to be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures (In case of
representative of body corporate, corporation and
Federal Government.)

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by
conveying my/our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (V) mark in the
appropriate box below (delete as appropriate);

N?' of I/Weassent | 1/We dissent
ordinary
Sr. _— . to the to the
Nature and Description of resolutions shares for . X
No. which Resolutions Resolutions
(FOR) (AGAINST)
votes cast
1 [‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 279 to 283 of the
Companies, Act, 2017 and all other applicable provisions, if any, and subject
to the sanction by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the
merger/amalgamation of LSE Ventures Limited (‘Transferor Company’) with
and into Digital Custodian Company Limited (‘Transferee Company’) as per
the Scheme of Amalgamation/Merger, as placed before the shareholders, be
and are hereby approved.
2 |RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme of merger/amalgamation of LSE
Ventures Limited (& its Members) with and into Digital Custodian Company|
Limited (& its Members), be and is hereby specifically approved.
3 |RESOLVED FURTHER THAT over and above the swap ratio, having been

determined by M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered Accountants, the
decision of the Board for the approval of the distribution ratio under the
method of effective swap ratio involving three equity components —namely,
common shares allocation under basic swap ratio (of 0.606, i.e., 606
common/ordinary shares of DCCL against every 1000 shares of LSEVL),
adjusted shares allocation (of 490 shares to the shareholders of each of the

merging companies), and additional securities allocation (of 20% of the post-|
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merger capital of the merging companies comprising of Class B—Redeemable
Shares and Perpetual & Convertible Sukuks), under this Scheme for the
overall beneficial allotment of equity shares be and is hereby specifically
approved/ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the shareholders be and is hereby
also granted to the terms and conditions as set out in the draft Scheme of|
lAmalgamation/Merger, which includes, inter-alia, the following:

a. That all asset and liabilities including Income Tax and all other statutory|
liabilities of the Transferor Company (LSE Ventures Limited) will be
transferred to and shall vest in the Transferee Company, i.e., Digital
Custodian Company Limited (as described in Schedule — 1 of the|
Scheme);

b. That the Scheme of Amalgamation/Merger shall be effective from
Effective Date, the provisions of the Scheme, so far as they relate to
transfer and vesting of the business and undertaking(s) of the Transferor,
Company (as described in Schedule — 1, Schedule — 3 and Schedule - 6
of the Scheme) into the Transferee Company, shall be applicable and
come into operation from the Sanction Date or such other date as the
Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore may approve;

c. That all the employees of the Transferor Company (i.e. LSE Ventures
Limited), if any, in service on the date immediately preceding the date
on which Scheme finally takes effect, i.e., the Effective Date, shall
become the employees of the Transferee Company, i.e., Digital
Custodian Company Limited (as described in Schedule — 4 of the|
Scheme) on such date without any break or interruption in service and
upon terms and conditions not less favorable than those subsisting in
the concerned Transferor Company on the said date;

d. That the listing status of the LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) with the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and eligibility status (of LSEVL)
with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) along with
all privileges, rights and liabilities of the Transferor Company with PSX
and CDC shall be transferred in the name of Digital Custodian Company|
Limited (as described in the Scheme).

e. Furthermore, the additional securities issued under this Scheme, i.e.,
Class B - Redeemable Shares and Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks of]
DCCL shall also stand listed subject to the submission of the certified
copy of the sanction Order of the Scheme and necessary requisite
formalities with regards to listing of these securities to PSX.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Board of
Directors of LSE Ventures Limited and Digital Custodian Company Limited to
amend any of the Swap ratio, Distribution ratio and/or Effective Swap ratio,
as the case may be, if advised or directed by the Honorable Lahore High
Court, Lahore, for the issuance of common shares and additional securities
of Digital Custodian Company Limited to the shareholders of the LSE
Ventures Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in order to accommodate the future business of
the merged entity, i.e., DCCL, the proposed changes, as attached with
Schedule - 9 of the Scheme in the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of DCCL, be and are hereby specifically and individually resolved to be
adopted.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded to the terms
and conditions as deliberated in the Article-6 of the Scheme for issuance off
additional securities and no further approval is required from the
shareholders for their issuance.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded under Section
83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, for the possible conversion of]
32,222,795 Digital Custodian Company Limited — Perpetual and Convertible
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Sukuk into 32,222,795 ordinary shares of Digital Custodian Company Limited
on triggering events as deliberated in the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval be and is hereby accorded to
approve the shelf registration of further Rs. 500,000,000 divided into
50,000,000 Digital Custodian Company Limited — Perpetual and Convertible
Sukuk of Rs. 10/- each that can be issued to the existing shareholders as a
bonus or right.

10

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded under Section
83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017 for the possible conversion of further|
50,000,000 Digital Custodian Company Limited — Perpetual and Convertible
Sukuk (as kept under Shelf Registration) into 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company on triggering events as deliberated in the Scheme.

11

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any delay or non-approval of the
registration/licensing of the Transferee Company to act as a central
depository for performing functions as described in the Scheme; the merger|
of the companies as per the instant Scheme, shall not be affected because
the same is hereby considered beneficial for the shareholders of both the
companies.

12

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 279 to 283
of the Companies, Act, 2017 and other applicable provisions, necessary
joint/separate application(s), petition(s) and may be moved by the Chief|
Executive Officer or the Company Secretary of Digital Custodian Company
Limited singly before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, for seeking
its directions as to convening, holding and conducting of any meeting(s) of
the shareholders and creditors (if any) or dispensation thereof, as the case
may be, including for the appointment of the Chairman, issuance and
dispatch of notices and placement of advertisements and for seeking any
other directions as the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, may deem fit
and proper and for seeking the approval of the proposed amalgamation/|
merger and the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation/Merger.

13

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive or the Company Secretary of
Digital Custodian Company Limited and/or LSE Ventures Limited (as the case
may be), be and is hereby singly authorized to sign, submit or present
necessary applications, petitions, supplementary applications/petitions,
summons, deeds, documents, instruments, rejoinders, replies, and to swear|
affidavits or execute bonds for the above-mentioned amalgamation/merger,
to the competent authorities including but not limited to Honorable Lahore
High Court, Lahore, the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, and
the Competition Commission of Pakistan.

14

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer or the Company
Secretary of Digital Custodian Company Limited, be and are hereby singly
authorized to submit the certified true copies of the resolutions passed by
the shareholders of the Company (i.e., respective company/ corporate|
undertaking) to the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the Registrar of|
Companies, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited and such other competent authorities, if necessary.

15

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer, or the Company|
Secretary of Digital Custodian Company Limited, be and are hereby singly
Quthorized:

Q) To sign, submit or present necessary applications, petitions,
supplementary applications/petitions, summons, deeds, documents,
instruments, rejoinders, replies, and to swear affidavits or execute bonds
for the above-mentioned amalgamation/ merger;

b) To engage any counsel(s)/advocate(s)/consultant(s) to file the
application(s) and petition(s) before the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore, and to do other needful tasks;

c) To appear [in person or through representative(s)] before the Honorable
Lahore High Court, Lahore; the Offices of the Registrar of the Companies;

10
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the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan; the Pakistan Stock|
Exchange Limited and/or before any other authority or person in
connection with the aforesaid amalgamation/merger; and

d) To do any other act, deed or thing which may be ancillary or incidental to|
the above-mentioned matter or which may otherwise be required for the|
aforesaid purposes.”

Signature of shareholder(s)

Date: Place:

NOTES:

1. Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to Chairman at above mentioned postal or email address.

Copy of CNIC should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. Postal ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting on or before March 15, 2024. Any postal ballot
received after this date, will not be considered for voting.

4. Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC.

5.  Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be
rejected.

6. Company shall draft ballot paper whereby explicit information, terms and conditions and choice of selection
is provided and ensure that no confusion arise for voters that may defeat the objective of voting.

N

11
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IAUTHORIZATION FOR CORPORATE MEMBER
(ON THE LETTERHEAD OF THE COMPANY)

Date:
The Secretary

Limited.

Lahore.

Sub: Authorization to attend the EOGM of the Company on behalf of Body Corporate (Member) of

the Company.
Dear Sir,
Please be informed that Mr./Mrs./Ms. , S/o W/o D/o , holder of CNIC
No. , has been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of our company vide
resolution dated to participate and vote on resolutions included in the agenda of the notice
of EOGM of scheduled for March 16, 2024 or at any date
adjourned/rescheduled thereof. Resolution of the Board dated in original duly signed and

stamped is attached herewith for reference and record.

Yours truly,

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company

SPECIMEN RESOLUTION
(ON THE LETTERHEAD OF THE COMPANY)

The following resolution has been passed by the Board of Directors of (Name of the Company) in its
meeting held on , at

Resolved that Mr./Mrs./Ms. ,S/o W/o D/o , be and is hereby authorized
on behalf of the Company to participate and vote for resolutions included in the agenda of the notice of
EOGM of scheduled for March 16, 2024 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled
thereof.

Certified True Copy.

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company

12
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PROXY FORM

I/We, , the undersigned member, being a member of
, hereby appoint , the undersigned
proxy, as my proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the EOGM of the Company
to be held on March 16, 2024 at a.m. and/or at any adjournment thereof.

The Member: The Proxy:
Signature:

Signature:
Name:
CNIC No.:

Father's name:
Revenue Stamp of Rs. 50/- Address:

Signature over

Date:

Seal/Stamp of the Company
Name and Designation of the Appointer:

CNIC No.:

Father’s name:
Address:

Date:

CDC Participant ID No.:
CDC Account/Sub-Account No.:
No. of Shares held:

Witness 1: Witness 2:
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
CNIC No.: CNIC No.:
Address: Address:

NOTES:

1. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not later than
48 hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

2. CDC beneficial owners and Proxy Holders must bring with them their Computerized National Identity
Cards (CNIC)/Passports in original to prove his/her identity and in case of Proxy, CDC beneficial owners
and Proxy Holders must enclose an attested copy of their CNIC/Passport with Proxy Form.

3. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee (unless it has been provided earlier) should be attached with the proxy form.

13
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STATEMENT OF INFORMATION
ACCOMPANYING NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS
UNDER SECTION 281(1)(a) / 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Background

Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL), formerly MCB Financial Services Limited, was incorporated
on February 12, 1992, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a private
limited company. The Company converted its status from Private Limited Company to Unlisted Public
Limited Company on June 19, 2009.

The principal objects of the Company are to act as trustee of investment trust schemes, voluntary pension
schemes, to provide custodian services and to act as transfer agent/share registrar of securities of listed
and unlisted companies. DCCL can also act as custodian to provide independent asset holding services.

Being a licensed/ registered Custodian/Trust company, DCCL is bestowed with a statutory mandate for
separately holding and accounting the clients/investors’ assets away from the control of the fund
managers/issuers and obligated to act as an independent supervisor for the security of the assets placed
under its watch by the Investment Advisors, Debt Securities Issuers and Managers of the Specialized
Funds/Discretionary Portfolios & Specially Managed Accounts. DCCL is the only Trustee Company which
is also offering Digitized Shares Registry (Corporate Share Registrar) Services. In this way, DCCL, acts as
the pioneer in the digital management and transfers of assets via its smart-ledgers technology by
providing trustee, custodial, registry, and repository functions of a variety of assets defined in the NBFC
Rules.

Currently, DCCL has following licenses/Registrations/Approvals as follows:

Sr. No. Type of Licenses/Registrations/Approvals From
1 Certificate of Registration to act as Trustee of Open-end/Closed- SECP
end Schemes under Regulation 40(C)(2) of Non-Banking Finance (Renewable every 3
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008. years)
2 License as a Debt Securities Trustee under Regulation 7(2) of the SECP
Public Offering (Regulated Securities Activities Licensing) (Renewable after 1
Regulation, 2017. year)
3 License as Share Registrar and Balloter under Regulation 7(2) of SECP
the Share Registrars and Balloters Regulations, 2017 and Section (Renewable after 1
69 of the Securities Act, 2015. year)
4 Certificate of registration as an Intermediary 4(1) of the SECP
Intermediaries (Registration) Regulations, 2017. (Renewable every 3
years)
5 Direct Participant of Pakistan Real Time Interbank Settlement SBP
Mechanism (PRISM)

LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) was incorporated under the Companies Act, 2017 with the principal
business of carrying out the business of making strategic & long-term investments and equity injection in
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other companies and undertakings in the form of equity, debentures, Sukuks, commercial papers, hybrid

instruments, warrants and any other type of shares or securities.

The Corporate Unique Identification (CUIN) of LSEVL is 0206407 and the date of incorporation is July 18,
2022. The company’s shares were listed on PSX, under an earlier scheme having been sanctioned by the

Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, accomplished through Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and

Reconstruction under Section 279 to 283 of the Companies Act, 2017.

1. Objectives of the present Scheme

a. Reorganization/Restructuring of LSEVL

Vi.

LSEVL has a healthy balance sheet and adequate equity capital, however, it does not
operate any business of its own.

LSEVL is only acting as an investment vehicle with no operations of its own. In this way, its
income is dependent on the returns to be received from the other companies. Hence, it is
desired to reorganize LSEVL in a way so that it becomes a business operating company.
Due to the peculiar legacy of LSEVL and its positioning in the capital market, whereby the
Company has provided seed/equity capital for the establishment of many infrastructure
entities, it is considered to be a best fit if LSEVL is merged with and into DCCL and to offer
a number of services for the digitization of assets.

LSEVL's successor company shall be able to adopt the business as a ‘non-securities market
depository or a limited-scale depository company’ by way of enabling DCCL to get
registered and function as a ‘central depository’ as envisaged in the Central Depositories
Act, 1997, for establishing the central depository system and maintaining the book entry
register for the unlisted securities/shares, subject to the issuance of the requisite licence
from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

The principal purpose of the restructuring and merger is the transformation of LSEVL into
a Trustee/Custodian company. Therefore, regardless of any delay or non-approval for the
registration/licensing of the Transferee company to act as a central depository; the merger
of the companies shall not be affected because of the same having been deemed beneficial
by the shareholders of both the companies.

b. Reorganization/Restructuring of DCCL

DCCL enjoys a unique position due to its multiple licenses and innovative technological
capabilities.

However, DCCL’s balance sheet and equity capital are not adequate enough to enable
the company to reposition itself as a limited-scale depository on its own.

In view of insufficient balance sheet footing, DCCL needs to find a merger partner which
enables it to incorporate sufficient capital strength within its own balance sheet.
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iv. A merger with LSEVL shall enable DCCL to become eligible to apply for registration as a
central depository for functioning as a ‘non-securities market depository or a limited-
scale depository, thereby creating value for shareholders of the merged company.

v. The principal purpose of the restructuring and merger is the financial strengthening of
Digital Custodian Company Limited for effective functioning as a Trustee/Custodian
company. Therefore, regardless of any delay or non-approval for the
registration/licensing of the Transferee company to act as a central depository; the
merger of the companies shall not be affected because of the same having been deemed
beneficial by the shareholders of both the companies.

2. Benefits of the Scheme

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10

11

12

Combining the businesses of LSEVL with DCCL will lead to diversification of the existing income
streams besides providing many newer business opportunities for the combined enterprise.
The combined shareholders’ equity of DCCL shall become Rs. 3.06 billion which will enable the
surviving company (DCCL) to utilize its balance sheet strength for obtaining new licenses.

The proposed merger will provide a broader shareholders’ base, which will be conducive for
further fundraising from the capital market, as and when required.

Operational and strategic synergies in terms of costs and efficiency will become available when
all operations (of LSEVL and DCCL) are combined, into a single entity.

The merger will create long-term value for the investors of LSEVL, who mostly got their shares
in 2012, i.e., upon the demutualization of the stock exchanges, but are yet to see the worth of
their holding multiply in a meaningful manner. The Book value of LSEVL per share is Rs. 12.40
whereas its market value is Rs. 4.45 per share (as on January 25, 2024), which is much lower
than its book value. Thus, after the merger and after adopting an operating business, the worth
of the shares of the residual company is expected to increase.

Furthermore, the shareholders of LSEVL shall also benefit in terms of increased allotment of
shares/securities because after a shareholder of LSEVL who had 1000 shares before the merger
shall get about 1144 shares/securities after the merger.

The merged entity shall be able to expand its business after obtaining the license to operate
as a non-securities market depository or a limited-scale depository.

The merged entity shall be able to achieve more operational and strategic synergies when
LSEVL’s assets and undertaking are transferred to/ amalgamated with DCCL.

The surviving entity’s core business shall become regulated under the Securities Act and DCCL
shall no longer operate under the burdensome NBFC regime.

) The merged entity shall be positioned as a service company which specializes in the
digitalization and unitization of assets.

) The members of LSEVL shall also continue to benefit from the listing status as DCCL shall
become listed upon the completion of the merger providing an easy entry and exit opportunity
to the shareholders.

) Itis expected that trading volumes (at PSX) will be improved after the proposed merger which
will provide liquidity and tradability to the shareholders/investors.
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3. Financial Impact and Analysis

Schedule-7 - SWAP Ratio, Distribution Ratio and Effective SWAP Ratio

1. SWAP Ratio Certificate is attached

2. Effective SWAP Ratio and Distribution Ratio Shareholders Shareholders

LSEVL LSEVL

Common Shares i.e. Ordinary Shares of DCCL* 60.60% of Pre-Merger Capital 108,847,200
Adjusted Shares i.e. Additional Ordinary Shares of DCCL 49.00% of Post-Merger Capital 53,335,128
Additional Securities
Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk 20.00% of Post-Merger Capital 21,769,440
Class B - Redeemable Shares 20.00% of Post-Merger Capital 21,769,440

* 606 shares of DCCL against 1,000 shares of LSEVL

Effective SWAP Ratio for the shareholders of LSE Ventures Limited 1.145
(for all Securities)

Distribution to the shareholders of Digital Custodian Company Limited

205,721,208

Shareholders

DCCL
Adjusted Shares i.e. Additional Ordinary Shares of DCCL 49.00% 25,610,720
Additional Securities
Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk 20.00% 10,453,355
Class B - Redeemable Shares 20.00% 10,453,355

OTHER MATTERS:

1. Interest of Directors:

The Directors are interested in the resolutions to the extent of their common directorships and
their respective shareholdings in each of the companies as mentioned in the list of shareholders

and as mentioned in the Scheme.

2. Effect on Secured Creditors

None of the Company is having secured creditors. No charge is created in favour of any bank,
financial institution or any other by any of the Company (party to the Scheme). So there will be
no effect on borrowing limits (which is Nil as on effective date) and effect on any other security

holder (which is Nil as on effective date).

3. Risk Factors
The Scheme is not approved by the shareholders of any Company.

NoC is not given by Competition Commission of Pakistan to the merger/Scheme.

o0 oo

or price of the shares of DCCL (after listing on PSX) may move adversely.

The Scheme is not approved/sanctioned by SECP or the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore.

Once the Scheme is approved by the Honorable Court, listing process may be delayed by PSX
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4. Mitigants to Risk Factors
a. Asmentioned inthe Scheme, individual companies shall continue and operate till the Scheme
is approved by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore.
b. Price of the share is dependent on the market forces that in turn dependent on general
economic condition, interest rate, political stability, fiscal and monetary policies etc., which
are beyond of any companies’ control.

5. Possible Purchase of Share by any other Company not involved in the Scheme

NIL

6. Effect on any Funds for Employees

As mentioned in the Scheme, employees will be transferred on the same remuneration and
other conditions of service, rights, privileges as to the provident fund, gratuity, any other
retirement funds, if any, and other matters as had been applicable to them, before the
effective date.

7. Cost of the Scheme

Digital Custodian Company Limited shall bear all the expenses related to the Scheme.
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Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction
including Financial Statements of DCCL and LSEVL and
Auditor’s SWAP Ratio Certificate for the Scheme
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SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION

PART-I

AMALGAMATION/MERGER OF

1. LSE VENTURES LIMITED
(AND ITS MEMBERS)

WITH AND INTO

2. DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
(AND ITS MEMBERS)

PART-II

ISSUANCE OF PERPETUAL AND CONVERTIBLE SUKUK & CLASS B — REDEEMABLE SHARES
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
(IN TERMS OF PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 279 TO 283 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
AND
All other enabling provisions under the Securities Act, 2015 [Section 87(4)(d)(i)], the
Companies Act, 2017 (Sections 66 & 83), The Structuring of Debt Securities Regulations, 2020

& The Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 and all other enabling provisions
of the laws, rule and regulations in force
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PREAMBLE

COMPANIES INVOLVED IN THE MERGER
1. LSE VENTURES LIMITED

LSE Ventures Limited (LVL) is incorporated under the Companies Act, 2017 with the principal business of
carrying out the business of making strategic & long-term investments and equity injection in other
companies and undertakings in the form of equity, debentures, Sukuks, commercial papers, hybrid
instruments, warrants and any other type of shares or securities. The Company has been incorporated to
operate as a public limited Company.

The Corporate Unique Identification (CUIN) of LSEVL is 0206407 and the date of incorporation is July 18,
2022. The company’s shares were listed on PSX under an earlier scheme having been sanctioned by the
honorable Lahore High Court accomplished through Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction under Section 279 to 283 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Registered office - 19-LSE Plaza, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-Igbal, Lahore.

External Auditors - Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants
Legal Advisors - Allied Legal Services

Share Registrar - F.D Registrar (Private) Limited

Listing Status

PSX Trading Symbol : LSEVL
Market Price : Rs. 4.45 per Share (as on January 25, 2024)
Trading Status : Active (main board)

Financial position (audited) of LSEVL as on June 30, 2023/ November 30, 2023 is as follows:

LSE Ventures Limited
Statement of Financial Position

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 369,529 369,529
Investment in associates 1,283,266 1,231,363
Intangible assets 6,231 -
Financial assets 753,152 715,242
Long term deposits 100 100

2,412,278 2,316,234
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Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 66,789 51,817

Advances and prepayments 1,154 7,929

Tax refunds due from 7,703 224

Government - net

Cash and bank balances 13,534 83,903

89,180 143,873

Total Assets 2,501,458 2,460,107

Authorized share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

Share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid-

up share capital 1,795,979 1,795,979

Capital reserves

Merger/demerger reserve 26,533 26,533

Fair value reserve 67,073 11,883

93,606 38,416

Revenue reserves

Un-appropriated profits 338,209 362,776

Total equity 2,227,794 2,197,171

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred tax 165,225 156,997
165,225 156,997

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 20,587 47,585

Provision for taxation 18,012 9,331

Unpaid dividend 54,272 33,455

Unclaimed dividend 15,568 15,568
108,439 105,939

Equity and Liabilities 2,501,458 2,460,107

Ratio Analysis

Book Value 12.40 12.23

Current Ratio 0.82 1.36

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.12 0.12

J1117117717174771117177717117774717 1717777111147

4|Page



2. DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED

Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL), formerly MCB Financial Services Limited, was incorporated
on February 12, 1992, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a private
limited company. The Company converted its status from Private Limited Company to Unlisted Public
Limited Company on June 19, 2009.

The principal objects of the Company are to act as trustee of investment trust schemes, voluntary pension
schemes, to provide custodian services and to act as transfer agent/share registrar of securities of listed
and unlisted companies. DCCL can also act as custodian to provide independent asset holding services.

Being a licensed/ registered Custodian/Trust company, DCCL is bestowed with a statutory mandate for
separately holding and accounting the clients/investors’ assets away from the control of the fund
managers/issuers and obligated to act as an independent supervisor for the security of the assets placed
under its watch by the Investment Advisors, Debt Securities Issuers and Managers of the Specialized
Funds/Discretionary Portfolios & Specially Managed Accounts. DCCL is the only Trustee Company which
is also offering Digitized Shares Registry (Corporate Share Registrar) Services. In this way, DCCL, acts as
the pioneer in the digital management and transfers of assets via its smart-ledgers technology by
providing trustee, custodial, registry, and repository functions of a variety of assets defined in the NBFC
Rules.

508, 5™ Floor, LSE Plaza, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-Igbal Road, Lahore.
Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered Accountants

Ali Zaheer

Unlisted Public Limited Company

Registered office -
External Auditors -
Legal Advisors -
Listing Status -

Currently, DCCL has following licenses/Registrations/Approvals as follows:

Sr. no. Type of Licenses/Registrations/Approvals From

1- Certificate of registration to act a trustee under Regulation Securities and
40(C)(1) of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities | Exchange Commission
Regulations, 2008 of Pakistan

2- License as a debt securities trustee under Regulation 5(1) of the Securities and
Public Offering (Regulated Securities Activities Licensing) | Exchange Commission
Regulation, 2017 of Pakistan

3- License as share registrar and balloter under Regulation 5 of the Securities and
Share Registrar and Balloters Regulation, 2017 and Section 68 of | Exchange Commission
the Securities Act, 2015 of Pakistan

4 - Certificate of registration as an intermediary (for filing of Securities and
documents through intermediaries under Section 455 of the | Exchange Commission
Companies Act, 2017 of Pakistan

5- Direct Participant of Pakistan Real Time Interbank Settlement | State Bank of Pakistan
Mechanism (PRISM)
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Financial position (audited) of DCCL as on June 30, 2023/November 30, 2023 is as follows:

Digital Custodian Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position

November 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment 19,237 21,690
Intangible assets 362,026 362,032
Investment in associates 138,418 85,329
Long term deposits 2,184 2,184
521,866 471,235
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 16,580 16,469
Short term investments 246 226
Advances and prepayments 2,079 57,930
Tax refunds due from Government — net 19,388 14,727
Cash and bank balances 765 2,065
39,058 91,417
Total Assets 560,924 562,652
Authorized share capital 600,000 600,000
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 522,668 522,668 |
Revenue reserves
Un-appropriated profits 2,474 (134)
Total equity 525,122 522,534
Non-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 4,154 5,959
Deferred tax 8,062 5,951
12,216 11,911
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19,468 24,388
Current portion of lease liabilities 4,098 3,819
23,566 28,207
Equity and Liabilities 560,924 562,652
Ratio Analysis
Book Value 10.05 10.00
Current Ratio 1.66 3.24
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.07 0.08
3. OBIJECTIVES AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME
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(a) Objectives of the Scheme

1) Reorganization/Restructuring of LSEVL

LSEVL has a healthy balance sheet and adequate equity capital, however, it does
not operate any business of its own.

LSEVL is only acting as an investment vehicle with no operations of its own. In this
way, its income is dependent on the returns to be received from the other
companies. Hence, it is desired to reorganize LSEVL in a way so that it becomes a
business operating company.

Due to the peculiar legacy of LSEVL and its positioning in the capital market
whereby the Company has provided seed/equity capital for the establishment of
many infrastructure entities, it is considered to be a best fit if LSEVL is merged
into DCCL and offer a number of services for the digitization of assets.
Subsequent to the implementation of the Scheme, LSEVL’s successor company,
i.e DCCL, shall be able to position itself for operating as a ‘non-securities market
depository or a limited-scale depository company’ after adopting the additional
provision in its object clause by requiring it “To get registered and function as a
‘central depository’ as envisaged in the Central Depositories Act, 1997, for
establishing the central depository system and maintaining the book entry
register for the unlisted securities/shares, subject to the issuance of the requisite
licence from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,” and after
obtaining the requisite registration from the SECP.

The principal purpose of the restructuring and merger is the transformation of
LSEVL into a Trustee/Custodian company. Therefore, regardless of any delay or
non-approval for the registration/licensing of the Transferee company to act as a
central depository at any subsequent stage; the merger of the companies shall
not be affected because of the same having been deemed beneficial by the
shareholders of both the companies.

2) Reorganization/Restructuring of DCCL

DCCL enjoys a unique position due to its multiple licenses and innovative
technological capabilities.

However, DCCL’s balance sheet and equity capital are not adequate enough to
enable the company to reposition itself as a limited-scale depository on its own.

In view of insufficient balance sheet footing, DCCL needs to find a merger partner
which enables it to incorporate sufficient capital strength within its own balance
sheet.

A merger with LSEVL shall enable DCCL to become eligible to apply for registration
as a central depository (for functioning as a ‘non-securities market depository or
a limited-scale depository) subject to the changes in the revised Memorandum
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and Articles followed by DCCL’s registration as a Central Depository, as and when
allowed by the SECP.

v. In the interim period, the purpose of the restructuring and merger of the
companies is to also fulfil the conditions of registration of the Digital Custodian
Company Limited (i.e, the Transferee) for effective functioning as a
Trustee/Custodian company, whereby the major shareholding of DCCL (~28%)
shall stand vested in LSE Capital Limited, which has the standing as a financial
institution.

(b) Benefits of the Scheme
1) Combiningthe businesses of LSEVL with DCCL will lead to diversification of the existing income

streams besides providing many newer business opportunities for the combined enterprise.

2) The combined shareholders’ equity of DCCL shall become Rs. 3.06 billion which will enable
the surviving company (DCCL) to utilize its balance sheet strength for obtaining new licenses.

3) The proposed merger will provide a broader shareholders’ base, which will be conducive for
further fundraising from the capital market, as and when required.

4) Operational and strategic synergies in terms of costs and efficiency will become available
when all operations (of LSEVL and DCCL) are combined, into a single entity.

5) The merger will create long-term value for the investors of LSEVL, who mostly got their shares
in 2012, i.e., upon the demutualization of the stock exchanges, but are yet to see the worth
of their holding multiply in a meaningful manner. The Book value of LSEVL per share is Rs.
12.40 whereas its market value is Rs. 4.45 per share (as on January 25, 2024), which is much
lower than its book value. Thus, after the merger and after adopting an operating business,
the worth of the shares of the residual company is expected to increase.

6) Furthermore, the shareholders of LSEVL shall also benefit in terms of increased allotment of
shares/securities because after a shareholder of LSEVL who had 1000 shares before the
merger shall get about 1144 shares/securities after the merger.

7) The merged entity shall be able to expand its business after obtaining the license to operate
as a non-securities market depository or a limited-scale depository.

8) The merged entity shall be able to achieve more operational and strategic synergies when
LSEVL’s assets and undertaking are transferred to/ amalgamated with DCCL.

9) The surviving entity’s core business shall become regulated under the Securities Act and DCCL
shall no longer operate under the burdensome NBFC regime.

10) The merged entity shall be positioned as a service company which specializes in the
digitalization and unitization of assets.

11) The members of LSEVL shall also continue to benefit from the listing status as DCCL shall
become listed upon the completion of the merger providing an easy entry and exit
opportunity to the shareholders.

12) It is expected that trading volumes (at PSX) will be improved after the proposed merger which
will provide liquidity and tradability to the shareholders/investors.
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ARTICLE — 1 - DEFINITIONS

1. In this Scheme of Arrangement (including the preamble hereto), unless the subject or context

otherwise requires, the following expressions shall bear the meanings specified against them below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(8)

(h)

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2017;
“CDC” means Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited;

“Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan including its
regional offices;

“Completion” or “Completion Date” means the date falling within the 120 days period from
the Sanction Date, during which all governmental regulatory agencies, land, revenue and
utility bodies/departments and capital market entities shall be required to complete the
processing of their respective NOCs, permissions, approvals, and transfers to complete the
actions required under the Scheme and to comply with the orders of the honorable Lahore
High Court thereby enabling the entities involved in this Scheme to effectuate and implement
the Scheme and when the assets, liabilities, undertaking and the business of the Transferor(s)
shall stand transferred (as per Article — 3) to the Transferee, and when the shares & the
securities of the companies involved in this Scheme are
transferred/issued/swapped/cancelled as per Article-4;

“Court” means the Lahore High Court, Lahore or any other court of competent jurisdiction for
the time being having jurisdiction under Sections 279 to 283 of the Companies Act, 2017 in
connection with this Scheme;

“DCCL” means the DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED, a public limited company
formed under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies act, 2017);

“Distribution Ratio” means the separate distribution of common shares, adjusted shares and
additional securities to the shareholders of DCCL and LSVL under the Scheme (as per Article
—4);

“Effective Date” means 00:00 hours as on November 30", 2023, or such other date as may
be approved by the Court on the request of the parties to this Scheme;

“Effective Swap Ratio” mean a Distribution ratio, as approved by the Board of the
merging companies, involving three equity components — namely, common shares
allocation under basic swap ratio (of 0.606 i.e., 606 common/ ordinary shares of DCCL
against every 1000 shares of LSEVL), adjusted shares allocation (of 490 shares to the
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(i)

(k)

(p)

(a)

shareholders of each of the merging companies), and additional securities allocation (of
20% of the post-merger capital of the merging companies comprising of class B —
Redeemable Shares and Perpetual & Convertible Sukuks), under this Scheme for the
overall beneficial allotment of equity shares to the shareholders;

“LSEVL” means the LSE VENTURES LIMITED, a public limited company formed under the
Companies Act, 2017;

“LSECAP Scheme” means the Scheme of Compromise, Arrangement and Reconstruction for
amalgamation/merger of LSE Proptech Limited and Modaraba Ali-Mali with and into LSE
Capital Limited that is already filed with the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, and in the
process of proceedings;

“NBFC Rules and Regulations” means the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment
and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and related regulations under the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008;

“PSX” means Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited;

“Redeemable Shares” means the Class B - Redeemable Shares of Digital Custodian Company
Limited —to be issued to the shareholders of LSEVL and DCCL as per the Distribution Ratio
under the Scheme;

“Rs.” or “PKR” shall mean “Rupees”, being the legal tender money of Pakistan;

“Sanction Date” shall have the same meaning ascribed thereto in Article 6, being the day on
which the honorable Lahore High Court approves the Scheme and on which day the Scheme
becomes operative;

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement in its present form, with any modification
thereof or addition hereto, as approved by the Court and/or the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan and/or the general meeting of members of the respective companies;

“SECP” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan;
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act, 2015;

“Sukuk” means the Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk of the Digital Custodian Company
Limited —to be issued to the shareholders of LSEVL and DCCL as per the Distribution Ratio
under the Scheme;
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(u) “Undertaking and Business - LSEVL” means the assets, undertaking, business, liabilities of the
LSE VENTURES LIMITED (including shares allocated under the Scheme) as more particularly
described in Schedule - 1 hereto.

2. The headings and marginal notes are inserted for convenience and shall not affect the construction
of this Scheme.
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ARTICLE — 2 — THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION

1. This Scheme of Arrangement has been formulated pursuant to the provisions of Sections 279 to 283
of the Act, for the transfer and vesting of:

(a) the Undertaking and Business - LSEVL (as a transferor) into DCCL (as transferee) as given in
Schedule — 1. Upon the completion of merger / amalgamation through the intended Scheme,
LSEVL will be dissolved under the Orders of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, without
winding up, and the shares of DCCL shall be issued to the registered members/shareholders
of LSEVL.

(b) the listing status of LSEVL to DCCL under the Scheme.

(c) issuance of additional securities and cross holding of certain equity shares/securities,
between DCCL and LSEVL as described under the Scheme.

2. All assets, liabilities and undertaking (as per Schedule 1) of LSEVL will be transferred to DCCL with
same rights, obligations, privileges and covenants.

3. The shares of DCCL shall be issued to the shareholders of LSEVL through the merger functionality of
CDC. Thus, same status and encumbrance attached to the LSEVL shares, if any, shall be
attached/transferred to the shares of DCCL for those shareholders.

4. Retained earnings, revenue reserves, capital reserves and merger reserves of DCCL and LSEVL shall be
re-characterized/ reconstructed under the Scheme as described in Schedule-3 - Statement of Financial
Position showing Merger Effect.

5. The pattern of shareholding may be changed after the Sanction Date once the shares of DCCL are
credited in CDS account of the shareholders (of LSEVL) by CDC but before assuming the listing status
of the ordinary shares of DCCL at PSX and before issuance of additional securities.

6. In order to accommodate the future business of the merged entity, i.e. DCCL, the Memorandum and
Articles of DCCL shall be changed/amended, as per the special resolutions (reproduced at Schedule-
9) of the shareholders of the Transferor and the Transferee companies to incorporate, for (1)
increasing the authorized (and paid up) capital of the Company, and (2) allowing the issuance of
additional securities of any other class(es) including Sukuks to the shareholders of the merging
companies as per the Scheme, to be implemented by remaining within the time constraints allowed
under the Completion Date and the obligation of compliance with the sanction order of the honorable
Lahore High Court for the completion of this Scheme.

7. The Scheme incorporates the issuance of common shares, adjusted shares and additional securities
to benefit the shareholders of the companies involved in this Scheme. The issuance of these shares,
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under the shareholders approved Distribution Ratio, shall take place subsequent to the sanction of
this Scheme from the honorable Lahore High Court, but before the dissolution of LSEVL.

8. The listing status of LSEVL at PSX shall be transferred to DCCL. The shares, Sukuk and redeemable
shares of DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED shall stand listed on PSX.

9. Equity investment in DCCL by LSEVL shall be distributed to the shareholders of LSEVL before the
distribution shares and additional securities as per the distribution ratio.

10. As the shares of LSEVL are eligible for Central Depository System (the "CDS") of Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (the "CDC"), the scrip-less shares, Sukuk and redeemable shares of DCCL
shall also be eligible for Central Depository System (the "CDS") of Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited (the "CDC").

11. Upon the completion of merger / amalgamation through the intended Scheme, LSEVL will be dissolved
under the Orders of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore without winding up, and the shares of
DCCL shall be issued to the registered members/shareholders of LSEVL.

12. Transfer of the Undertaking and Business from LSEVL to DCCL: The Undertaking and Business of
LSEVL shall be transferred and vested in DCCL in the following manner:

(a) The designated immovable (including land, building, usufruct with all equitable and legal
rights) and movable assets, liabilities, revaluations reserves, and any capital/merger/revenue
reserves, described in Schedule — 1 (The Undertaking and Net Assets of LSEVL to DCCL), shall
stand transferred/vested to DCCL from LSEVL. Generally, these net assets include land,
building, equipment, investment property, cash and bank balances, revaluation reserves and
related liabilities. It is however, mentioned that no land or building is now legally held in the
name of LSEVL.

(b) The Undertaking and Business of LSEVL, as existing on the Effective Date shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, shall stand transferred/vested to and be vested or deemed
to have been transferred to or vested in DCCL on the Effective Date.

(c) As per the provisions of the Companies Act-2017, notwithstanding anything contained in the
Stamp Act, 1899 (Il of 1899) or any other law for the time being in force, no stamp duty shall
be payable on transfer to the Transferee company (i.e., DCCL) of the whole or any part of the
undertaking and of the property of any Transferor company (i.e., LSEVL) as a result of
sanctioning of the Scheme by the honorable Court.

(d) Thetransfer/vestingshall be subject to the existing rights (equitable and legal rights), charges
mortgages and hypothecation, if any. There is however, no land or building assets held in the
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name of LSEVL, and hence no charges/mortgages/hypothecation have been registered on the
assets of LSEVL.

(e) Such assets of LSEVL, which are moveable in nature or are capable of transfer by manual /
physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, shall be so transferred and shall become
the property of DCCL as its integral part. All governmental authorities, bodies, departments
and concerned institutions/companies, wherever required, shall transfer the assets without
any cost, taxes, and without any further act or deed by the DCCL.

(f) All utility licenses, connections, meters, and other facilities for electricity, gas, water,
telecommunications and other concessions allowed, licensed or provided by any
governmental agency (including Water and Power Development Authority, Lahore Electric
Supply Company Limited, Water and Sanitation Agency, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited,,
Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited) or any other agency will stand transferred
without any additional charges/costs to the DCCL from the LSEVL with the respective benefits
including the deposits and prepayments, governmental approvals etc, (if any). The security
deposits and any other cost paid by DCCL against any of these and other existing facilities shall
remain unchanged and the charge of name shall take place without any additional fee,
charges or costs whatsoever and without any delay.

(g) All the registrations, rights, powers, licenses, permits, sanctions, permissions, privileges
allowed to LSEVL shall stand transferred to DCCL and the lease rights (short term and long
term), equitable rights, legal rights given by LSEVL to the third parties shall also be transferred
(with all rights and obligations) from LSEVL to DCCL.

(h) LSEVL’s equity investments in Central Depository Company Limited (CDC), National Clearing
Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL), Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) and
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) shall be transferred to DCCL, by remaining
within the time constraints allowed under the Completion Date and the obligation of
compliance with the sanction order of the honorable Lahore High Court for the completion of
this Scheme. These investments have already been classified on ‘Available for Sale’ basis by
LSEVL and DCCL shall become bound to dispose of these investments within the three (3)
years’ time period (2024-2027) on best effort basis.

(i) All the equity Investments in CDC, NCCPL, PACRA and PMEX shall be transferred from LSEVL
at fair market value to DCCL. This fair market shall be applied with effect from the Sanction
Date and reflected into the opening balance sheet of DCCL on the basis of a valuation
report/certificate to be obtained from any practicing Chartered Accountant subsequent to
the sanction of the scheme by the honorable Lahore High Court. The difference in the fair
value and the carrying value shall be charged/credited to the merger reserves or goodwill
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arising from merger, as the case may be, and shall be accordingly recognized in the books of
DCCL.

13. Conduct of Business by LSEVL Till the Completion Date: Till the Sanction Date, LSEVL shall not sell,
transfer or dispose of any of its Undertaking and Business.

(a) The amalgamation / merger in accordance with this Scheme shall be treated as having taken
effect from the Sanction Date and as from that time and until the Completion Date when LSEVL's
Undertaking and Business is transferred to and vested in DCCL.

(b) LSEVL shall carry on and be deemed to carry on all its business and activities, if any, and shall
stand possessed of its properties and assets, if any, for and on account of and in trust for DCCL
and all the profits accruing to LSEVL or losses arising or incurred by them, if any, shall for all
purposes be treated as the profits or losses, if any, of DCCL.

(c) Itis hereby undertaken by LSEVL that it will carry on its business with reasonable diligence and
business prudence, until the Sanction Date and it shall not alienate, charge, mortgage,
hypothecate, encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of the respective Undertakings and
Business or any part thereof except, in the ordinary course of business, or without the prior
written consent of the Board of Directors of DCCL.

14. Determination of the Undertaking and Business:
(a) A balance sheet:

1. has been prepared by LSEVL (appended herewith as Schedule 5) of the Undertaking and
Business, including without limitation, the capital reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation
surplus and accumulated profits and losses of LSEVL, as reflected in the books of account of
LSEVL immediately preceding the Effective Date and report of the agreed upon procedures
from the Auditors has been taken on the books of accounts. Since LSEVL is listed Company,
its accounts are publicly available and have already been disseminated to the shareholders
through Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) Limited;

2. shall be prepared by LSEVL of the Undertaking and Business, including, without limitation, the
share capital, capital and general reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation surplus and
accumulated profits and losses of LSEVL, as reflected in the books of account of LSEVL as of
the Sanction Date and which shall be audited by the Auditors of LSEVL, within sixty (60) days
of the Sanction Date;
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3. has been/shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in Pakistan and shall include the notes setting out the methodology and assumptions used in
identifying the Undertaking and Business of LSEVL.

(b) A balance sheet:

1) has been prepared by DCCL (appended herewith as Schedule 5) of the Undertaking and
Business, including without limitation, the capital reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation
surplus and accumulated profits and losses of DCCL, as reflected in the books of account of
DCCL immediately preceding the Effective Date and which has been audited by the Auditors
of DCCL;

2) shall be prepared by DCCL of the Undertaking and Business, including, without limitation, the
share capital, capital and general reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation surplus and
accumulated profits and losses of DCCL, as reflected in the books of account of DCCL as of the
Sanction Date and which shall be audited by the Auditors of DCCL, within sixty (60) days of
the Sanction Date;

3) has been/shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in Pakistan and shall include notes setting out the methodology and assumptions used in
identifying the Undertaking and Business of DCCL.

15. The Statement of Financial Position, certified by the practicing Chartered Accountant, duly showing
the Merger Effect shall be prepared by the Board of Directors based on the audited financial
statement as on Sanction Date that will show the assets, liabilities and the reserves (the Undertaking
and Net Assets of LSEVL) liable to be transferred on the Sanction Date.

J1117117717174771117177717117774717 1717777111147 16|Page



ARTICLE — 3 — SHARES AND EQUITY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

1. EQUITY POSITION OF THE MERGING COMPANIES
(a) LSE VENTURES LIMITED
1) The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 2,000,000,000 divided into 200,000,000

of ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, out of which 179,597,880 ordinary shares are fully paid
and issued as follows:

No. of Shares ]
Issued for/Against Rs.
Issued
179,597,880 | Issued under Scheme of Compromises, | 1,795,978,800
Arrangement and Reconstruction under Section
279 to 283 of the Companies Act, 2017

179,597,880 1,795,978,800

2) Pattern of Shareholding of the Shares held by the Shareholders as of Effective Date is as

follows:
Category No. of Shares % holding
Modaraba Al-Mali Sponsors 47,721,586 26.57%
Muhammad Igbal Sponsors 2,204,444 1.23%
Humera Muhammad Iqgbal Sponsors 20,150,943 11.22%
Icon Management (Private) Limited Sponsors 2,995,861 1.67%
Acme Mills (Private) Limited Sponsors 2,995,861 1.67%
Public and Investors Others/ 103,529,889 57.64%
Investors
179,597,880

3) The total number of shareholders of LSEVL as of the Effective Date is 1,370.

4) Shares of LSEVL owned by Modaraba Al-Mali shall be transferred to LSE Capital Limited
once LSECAP Scheme is sanctioned by honorable Court.

5) The Share Capital of the LSEVL will not be changed for ordinary shares under the Scheme.

6) Certain other class of shares/securities shall be issued to the shareholders, which may be
redeemed and converted, as per the amended Memorandum and Articles of Association.
Such class of shares/securities shall be transferred as such to the Transferee Company
(DCCL) on the same terms and conditions. If conversion into ordinary shares is part of
such class of shares/securities, the same will also be converted (after the Sanction Date)
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into ordinary shares of DCCL on the same conversion ratio. These class of
shares/securities may also be merged/ amalgamated with and into ordinary
shares/securities of different company or companies (as the case may be) along with the
listing status (at PSX) of that class of share(s). Likewise, the authorized capital of that class
can either be merged with the DCCL or the authorized capital of any other Transferee
company (as the case may be).

7) The pattern of shareholding may be changed after the Sanction Date once the shares of
DCCL are credited in CDS account of the shareholders (of LSEVL) by CDC but before
assuming the listing status (i.e. before first trading date of DCCL) at PSX. Therefor Part IX
of the Securities Act, 2015, shall not apply.

8) Complete list of shareholders is attached as Schedule — 2 (List of Shareholders);

9) The Board of Directors of the Company (LSEVL) before the Scheme is as follows:

Sr. Name of Director Category

No.

1. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Chairman

2. Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry Chief Executive Officer /Director
3. Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood Independent Director

4, Ms. Minahil Ali Female/Non-Executive Director
5. Mr. Abid Latif Khan Non-Executive Director

6. Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir Independent Director

7. Mr. Zahid Mahmood Independent Director

(b) DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
1. The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 600,000,000 divided into 60,000,000 of
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, out of which 52,266,777 ordinary shares are fully paid and

issued.

2. The pattern of shareholding of the Shares held by the Shareholders as of Effective Date is as

follows:
No. of Shares % holding
InfoTech (Private) Limited 20,072,173 38.40%
LSE Capital Limited 18,347,472 35.10%
LSE Financial Services Limited 5,221,973 10.00%
ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 4,704,480 9.00%
Others 3,920,679 7.50%
52,266,777
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(b) Under an ongoing scheme, i.e. the LSECAP Scheme, pending with the honorable Lahore High
Court, certain shares of DCCL are envisaged to be transferred from InfoTech (Private) Limited
to LSE Capital Limited, its shareholders and LSE Financial Services Limited. The effect of the
same, subject to the sanction by the honorable Court, and the amended list of the shareholders
is attached as Schedule — 2 (List of Shareholders).

(c) The total number of shareholders of DCCL, as of the Effective Date is 16.

(d) The Share Capital of the DCCL will not be changed for the ordinary Shares under the Scheme.
However, the pattern of shareholding can be changed till the Sanction Date.

(e) The Board of Directors of the Company (DCCL) before the Scheme is as follows, which will continue
to exist after the merger until the date of the next elections (on or before Mar 24, 2025) in terms
of Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017, except any interim changes due to the need for filling
up of any casual vacancies:

Sr. No. Name of Director Category

1. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Chairman / Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry Chief Executive Officer / Non-Director
3. Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Independent Director

4, Mr. Shoaib Mir Independent Director

5. Dr. Yusuf Zafar Independent Director

6. Syed Mukhtar Hussain Jaffery Non-Executive Director

7. Mr. Farrukh Younas Khan Non-Executive Director

8. Mr. Muhammad Khalid Farooq Qazi Non-Executive Director

9. Mr. Muhammad Nasir Mirza Non-Executive Director

10. Mr. Naseer Ahmad Akhtar Non-Executive Director

2. EQUITY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
(a) EFFECTIVE SWAP RATIO

1) Swap Ratio: The Swap ratio for the shares of both companies (DCCL and LSEVL), as attached
with this Scheme, has been worked out by Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered
Accountants, on the basis of following the well-known methods and other applicable
valuation criteria for the fair determination of the basic swap ratio. However, for the purposes
of this Scheme, the Boards of the merging companies have decided to use an Effective Swap
Ratio so that the merger results in the overall beneficial allocation, comprising of the three
equity components, to the members/shareholders of the merging companies.

2) Effective Swap Ratio: This shall comprise the following types of allocations under the Scheme:

i Common shares allocation

J1117117717174771117177717117774717 1717777111147 19Page



ii.  Adjusted shares allocation
iii. Additional securities allocation

3) Distribution Ratio: The Distribution Ratio shall involve the issuance of the following number
of common shares, adjusted shares and additional securities:

To the Shareholders of

LSEVL DCCL
Ordinary Shares before merger 179,597,880 52,266,777
After merger
Common shares (Ordinary Shares) 108,847,200 52,266,777
Adjusted shares (Ordinary Shares) 53,335,128 25,610,720
162,182,328 77,877,497
Additional securities
Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks 21,769,440 10,453,355
Class B - Redeemable Share 21,769,440 10,453,355
205,721,208 98,784,207

Please refer to Schedule — 7 for Effective SWAP Ratio and Distribution Ratio

(b) Book Value of the Companies/ Entities before and after the Scheme:

Before Merger After Merger
LSEVL DCCL DCCL
Book Value Rs./Share 12.40 10.05 12.73

(c) Authorized Capital

1) The authorized capital of LSEVL shall be added to the authorized capital of DCCL and it will be
increased to Rs. 2,600,000,000/-. No additional fee shall be paid to the Commission for
combining the authorized capital of both the companies and the Memorandum of DCCL shall
stand changed for the revised authorized capital of DCCL to Rs. 2,600,000,000/- as under:

Name of the Company Authorized Capital before Authorized Capital after the
the Scheme sanctioning of the Scheme
Digital Custodian Company | Rs. 600,000,000 divided into | Rs. 3,000,000,000 divided into
Limited (DCCL) 60,000,000 ordinary shares | 260,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.
of Rs. 10/- each 10/- each and 40,0000,000 of Class
B — Redeemable shares of Rs. 10/-
each
LSE Ventures Limited Rs. 2,000,000,000 divided | Dissolved by the Order of the
(LSEVL) into 200,000,000 ordinary | Honorable Lahore High Court,
shares of Rs. 10/- each Lahore without winding up
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‘ Total in Rs. Rs. 2,600,000,000 Rs. 3,000,000,000

2) The authorized and the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital shall be further divided
into difference classes of shares as follows:

Ordinary Class B -
Shares Redeemable Share Total
Authorized share capital Nos. 260,000,000 40,000,000 300,000,000
Nominal / Par Value Rs./Share 10.00 10.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital Par Value per Issued Value
% Nos. Share/Sukuk Rs. in 000
Class B - Redeemable Shares
to be issued 20% 32,222,795 10.00 322,228
Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks
to be issued 20% 32,222,795 10.00 322,228
Total common shares 240,059,825 10.00 2,400,598

3. CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme being effective in terms of the order of the honorable Lahore High Court, shares
allocation shall be made as part of the Effective Swap ratio, and common shares, adjusted shares and
additional securities shall be issued without any consideration at par value and subject to the terms
of this Scheme and without any further application, deed or instrument but only as a consideration
for the transfer to and vesting of the Undertaking and Business of LSE VENTURES LIMITED in the
DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED as defined in the Scheme.

(a) The shares issuance shall take place as per the Distribution Ratio.
(b) The distribution of shares and the merger effect are shown in Schedule — 3. The same
methodology shall be followed after the Sanction Date.
(c) Transfer/cancellation of shares
1) All members whose names shall appear in the register of member of LSEVL, on such date
after the Sanction Date as the Board of Directors of DCCL may determine, shall surrender
their share certificates for cancellation thereof to DCCL. In default, upon the new shares
being allotted and issued by DCCL to the members of LSEVL, to those whose names shall
appear on the respective register of members on such date, as aforesaid, the share
certificate in relation to the certificates held by them in LSEVL shall be deemed to have been
duly cancelled. A notice of up to fourteen (14) days' shall be given to the members of LSEVL
of the date fixed by the directors of DCCL, for determining the entitlements to ordinary
shares of DCCL to be issued to the members of LSEVL. The members holding physical
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2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

certificates, if any, will deliver their share certificates to the company for cancellation and
shall be issued the shares of DCCL in physical form within thirty (30) days from the reopening
of the Book Closure. As the share certificates of LSEVL are eligible for Central Depository
System (the "CDS") of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the "CDC"), the
scrip-less shares of DCCL shall be directly credited by book entries in the CDS in lieu of the
scrip-less share certificates of LSEVL to their respective Investors' accounts or sub-accounts
with CDC participants within thirty (30) days from the reopening of Book Closure as
announced for the determination of the merger entitlements.

Upon the allotment of common shares of DCCL to the members of LSEVL in the manner
aforesaid, all share certificates representing common shares of LSEVL shall stand cancelled.

While making physical allotment of the new shares, the fractional allotments above 0.5
shares shall be rounded up to one share and any fraction below 0.5 shall be ignored.
However, for shares in CDS fractional shares shall be ignored.

The working of the merger adjustment and the Balance Sheet of DCCL, to emerge
immediately after the merger is attached herewith in Schedule-3 and Schedule-6. The
merger reserves or goodwill arising of merger, as the case may be, shall be recognized in
the books of DCCL. Merger reserves, if any, shall be treated as capital reserves for all
purposes.

Once distribution of common shares to the shareholders of LSEVL is made, distribution of
adjusted shares and additional securities (Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks and Class B —
Redeemable Shares) shall be made to the shareholders of LSEVL and to the shareholders of
DCCL as per the Distribution Ratio.

For the distribution of physical Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks (‘Sukuk’) and Digital
Custodian Company Limited — Class B - Redeemable Shares, the physical shareholders will
get physical scrips of redeemable shares and the Sukuks. Fractional shares, Sukuk and
redeemable shares shall not be issued.

Ordinary shares, Sukuk and redeemable share of DCCL shall be the eligible securities under
Central Depository System (the "CDS") of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(the "CDC"). Moreover, the common shares, Sukuks and Class B redeemable shares of DCCL
shall be listed on PSX.
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ARTICLE — 4 — RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF DCCL AND LSEVL IN RESPECT OF THE UNDERTAKING AND BUSINESS

1. All suits, appeals, arbitrations, governmental investigations and other legal proceedings instituted by
or against LSEVL in respect of the Undertaking and Business (as defined in Schedule 1) and pending
before any court, tribunal, regulatory body or any other authority shall be treated as suits, appeals
and legal proceedings by or against LSEVL, and may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or
against DCCL accordingly.

2. All taxes on income, including but not limited to, advance tax and withholding taxes,
collected/deducted from the Effective Date till the Sanction Date in respect of the Undertaking and
Business shall, shall be deemed to, be to the benefit and credit of LSEVL and shall be transferred to
DCCL.

3. The capital reserves, revenue reserves, merger reserves, revaluation surpluses and accumulated
profits and losses of LSEVL, as at the day preceding the Effective Date and immediately preceding
the Sanction Date respectively, as audited by the Auditors relating to the Undertaking and
Business, shall constitute and be treated as reserves and revaluation surpluses of a corresponding
nature in DCCL (as defined and mentioned in Schedule 5), and shall be accounted on that basis in
the books of accounts of DCCL.

4. The assets acquired by the Transferee (DCCL) shall be treated as having the same character as the
same had in the hands of the Transferor (LSEVL).

5. Every officer, staff or other employees of LSEVL, as existing on the Effective Date, shall become
the officers, staff or employees of DCCL, as the case may be, (as mentioned in Schedule 4) on the
basis that their services have not been interrupted by the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking
and Business of LSEVL into DCCL, under this Scheme and on the same remuneration and other
conditions of service, rights, privileges as to the provident fund, gratuity, any other retirement
funds, if any, and other matters as had been applicable to them, before the Effective Date.
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ARTICLE — 5 — GENERAL PROVISIONS

SANCTION AND EFFECTIVENESS OF SCHEME

1. Sanctions and Provisions of the Scheme:
(a) This Scheme has been formulated in terms of the provisions of Section 279 and all other enabling
provisions of the Act and for an order under Section 282 (along with Section 283) of the Act for
bringing the Scheme into effect.

(b) This Scheme is subject to the sanction of the Court and may be sanctioned in its present form or
with or without any modification thereof or addition thereto as the Court may approve and this
Scheme shall become effective, with such modification or addition, if any, also subject to any
conditions, which the Court may impose.

(c) The Scheme also incorporates the provisions for the issuance of Class B-Redeemable shares and
Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks (collectively called additional securities under the Distribution
Ratio) to be dealt with under Sections 66 and 83 of the Companies Act, 2017, Section 87(4)(d)(i)
of the Securities Act, 2015, The Structuring of Debt Securities Regulations, 2020 & The Companies
(Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020. Whereas the issuance of these additional securities
only warrants the approval from the Boards and the shareholders of the companies, however,
since the allocation of the same is part of the Effective Swap ratio for the benefit of the
shareholders, therefore the same have been made a part of the Scheme.

(d) The respective Boards of Directors of LSEVL and DCCL have approved the foregoing Scheme for
the submission of the same to the honorable Lahore High Court (LHC), and have prayed to the
Court to order the convening of the Extraordinary General Meetings (EOGMs) of the relevant
companies under its own appointed Chairmen of the meetings for seeking the approval of the
Scheme by way of special resolution(s) before sanctioning the Scheme in its absolute discretion.
The respective Board of Directors of DCCL and LSEVL, have also sought the authority from their
shareholders to be authorized to give consent to, either singly or jointly, to any modifications or
additions or alterations to be made to this Scheme or to any conditions, which the Court may
think fit to impose and may give any directions, as the honorable Court may consider necessary
to settle any question(s) or difficulty arising under this Scheme or in regard to its implementation
or in any matter connected therewith.

(e) The provisions of this Scheme shall become binding and operative on the date (the "Sanction
Date") of the order of the Court (through the signed order and the Scheme), sanctioning this
Scheme under Section 279 of the Act, and by making any necessary provisions under Section 282
of the Act.
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(f) Notwithstanding that the Scheme becomes binding and operative on the Sanction Date, the
merger of LSEVL, and transfer to and vesting in DCCL, of the Undertaking and the Business shall
be deemed to have taken place on the “Effective Date” and shall be treated accordingly, as per
the provisions of this Scheme.

(g) Except as expressly otherwise stated herein, following the Sanction Date, the Undertakings and
the Business recorded in the books of account of LSEVL (as per Schedule 1) at the respective
values shall be recorded/reflected in the books of account of DCCL on the date preceding the
Effective Date. From the accounting perspective, the transfer of balance from the books of the
Transferor to the books of Transferee shall serve this purpose. Moreover, the profit and loss
items in the books of accounts will be shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity and no
corresponding changes shall need to be made in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the interim
period between the Effective Date and the Sanction Date.

(h) Each of LSEVL and DCCL shall take all actions and execute all formalities considered and deemed
necessary and expedient by their respective Boards of Directors to properly and smoothly cause
the transfer and vesting of the respective Undertakings and Businesses in the manner stated
herein, and shall carry out and execute this Scheme pursuant to and in accordance with the order
of the Court.

(i) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the respective Boards of Directors of LSEVL
and DCCL, may, generally or with regard to any specific issue or matter related to the execution
and implementation of the Scheme, upon its due approval by the Court, authorize any person(s)
or officials to carry out such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed expedient and necessary,
for a proper and smooth implementation of the Scheme from time to time.

(j). ' The Board of Directors of DCCL and LSEVL have given their assent to any modification or
amendment to the Scheme or to agree to any terms and/or conditions, which the Court and / or
any other Authority, Body or Commission under the law, may deem fit to direct or impose or
which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or
difficulty that may arise for implementing and / or carrying out the Scheme and to do all acts,
deed and things as may be necessary or desirable or expedient for putting the Scheme into effect.

(k) For the purposes of giving effect to the Scheme or any modification or amendment thereof, the
directors of DCCL are hereby authorized by LSEVL to give such directions and / or to take all such
steps and actions as may be necessary or desirable including any direction for settling any
guestion or doubt or difficulty, whatsoever that may arise from time to time.
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2. As of the Sanction Date, the terms of this Scheme shall be binding on each of LSEVL and DCCL and all
their respective shareholders, members, employees, debtors and creditors and any person having any
right or liability in relation to them.

3. All the costs, charges and expenses, incurred / to be incurred in relation to or in connection with the
Scheme of Arrangement and of carrying out the implementation of the Scheme or incidental to the
completion of the amalgamation/merger in pursuance of the Scheme, shall be borne and paid by
LSEVL.

4. There can be difference in tax year(s) between the Effective Date and the Sanction Date. Tax returns
shall not be changed/revised for the effective dates for the entities involved (i.e. DCCL and LSEVL).
Moreover, tax position as on Sanction date shall be carried forward to the Transferee i.e. from LSEVL
to DCCL.

5. No gain or loss shall be taken to arise on disposal of asset from the Transferor to the Transferee by
virtue of the Scheme under Section 97A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. No double taxation
impact (in the form of withholding taxes or/and collecting taxes or/and assessment basis) shall be
made/ levied on income, profits and revenues of the companies/ entities involved by virtue of this
Scheme, and only net of tax balances shall be transferred.

6. This Scheme shall become null and void, subject to the following and in that event, no rights and
liabilities shall accrue to or be incurred in terms of this Scheme:

(a) if the Scheme is not approved by the requisite majority of the shareholders and the members of
any of LSEVL and DCCL;

(b) if the sanction of the Court in respect of this Scheme is not obtained by such date (if any) as may
be mutually agreed by the respective Board of Directors of LSEVL and DCCL.

7. After the Sanction Date, the shares, perpetual and convertible Sukuk, Class B - Redeemable shares of
DCCL shall be listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange under the order of the Court without any further,
act, deed, formality or fee, subject to the filing of such documentation as may be required by it, in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations.

8. After the Sanction Date, LSEVL will be dissolved by the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore without winding up.
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DELISTING / LISTING

9. Subsequent to the Sanction Date, LSE VENTURES LIMITED shall stand de-listed from Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited within such timeframe during which the shares reconstruction arrangement is
completed, and the members of LSEVL shall be allotted the shares by DCCL.

10. Subsequent to the Sanction Date, the ordinary shares, Sukuk and redeemable shares of DIGITAL
CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED shall stand listed (at par value/ nominal value) on PSX within such
timeframe during which the shares reconstruction arrangement under this Scheme is completed,
without any further, act, deed, formality or fee except that DCCL shall be required to file all required
documentation to PSX for the purposes of listing. Furthermore, the additional securities under this
Scheme, i.e. Class B - Redeemable Shares and Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks of DCCL shall also
stand listed subject to the submission of necessary paperwork and the certified copy of the Scheme
to PSX.

MISCELLANEOUS

11. This Scheme shall be governed by and be construed in accordance with the substantive and procedural
laws of Pakistan.

12. The section or headings used in this Scheme, are solely for the convenience of reference, and shall
not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Scheme or any of its provisions.

13. The transfer, vesting and amalgamation of the Undertaking and Businesses in terms of this Scheme
shall not: (i) constitute any assignment, devolution, conveyance, alienation, parting with possession,
or other disposition under any law for the time being in force; (ii) give rise to any forfeiture; (iii)
invalidate or discharge any contract; and (iv) give rise to any right of first refusal or pre-emptive right.

14. This Scheme is subject to the sanction of the Court and may be sanctioned in its present form or with
any modification thereof or addition thereto as the Court may approve; and this Scheme is also subject
to any such modification or addition or conditions, if any, which the Court may impose.

15. The Swap and the Effective Swap ratios (as mentioned in this Scheme and having been duly approved
by way of the special resolution) will not be changed unless directed (and accepted by the Company)
by the honorable Lahore High Court. Any difference, if any, will be adjusted either in the goodwill or
merger reserves, as the case may be. No further approval for any change having been ordered by the
honorable Court, shall be required from the shareholders of the Company.
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16. The Board of Directors of DCCL shall have the power to rectify any accounting, calculation, rounding
or typographical errors and any other errors in the Scheme, if any, and the presence of any such errors
will not affect the spirit, efficacy and implementation of the Scheme.

17. In case of any ambiguity or conflict ad actual transfer of assets, liabilities and reserves, the Board of

Directors of DCCL shall be the authority to decide and resolve the issue before and after the Sanction
Date.
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ARTICLE — 6 — TERMS & CONDITIONS GOVERNING THE ISSUANCE OF CLASS B — REDEEMABLE SHARES
AND PERPETUAL AND CONVERTIBLE SUKUKs

1. The issuance of Class B - Redeemable Share & Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk to the shareholders
of DCCL and LSEVL is part of the Distribution ratio of the Scheme to benefit the shareholders in more
than one way of holding the ownership stake in DCCL.

2. As per the Companies Act, 2017, the issuance of shares of different classes only requires approval of
the shareholders, which shall be sought as part of the approval of the Scheme from the general body
of the members of the Companies (DCCL and LSEVL) to be held under the Court appointed Chairmen
of the EOGMs under the orders of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. Moreover, the
conversion of Sukuks into the common shares requires approval under Section 83(1)(b) of the
Companies Act, 2017, which will also be obtained from the shareholders.

3. The issuance of the above additional securities shall be independently construed. If for any reason,
the issuance of these additional securities (or either of the securities) is not allowed and effectuated,
this non-approval will not affect the Scheme and the swap ratio (and ratio of additional capital) will
remain the same and difference will be credited to the merger reserves.

4. Class B - Redeemable Shares and the Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk shall be separately listed at
PSX. Opening price (at PSX) of these securities shall be the par/nominal value of these securities.
Moreover, Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk shall be traded on NTS (new trading system) of PSX like
equity security due to its hybrid nature.

CLASS B REDEEMABLE SHARES

1. Class B - Redeemable Shares of DCCL shall also be issued to the shareholders of LSEVL and DCCL as
part of the Scheme.

2. The Digital Custodian Company Limited — Class B - Redeemable Shares shall be issued under the
approval of the Board of Directors, who may issue, allot, forfeit, surrender, rectify or otherwise
dispose of the same to such persons, firms, corporation or corporations on such terms and conditions
and at any such time as may be thought fit, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017.

3. The Distribution Ratio for the issuance of Class B-Redeemable Shares of DCCL, as part of the additional
securities to the shareholders of LSEVL and DCCL shall be as per the following:

No. of Class B - Redeemable Share to be given to the Shareholders of LSEVL 21,769,440
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No. of Class B - Redeemable Share to be given to the Shareholders of DCCL 10,453,355

Ratio of Distribution (of Class B— Redeemable Share) is 20% (of post-merger capital) 32,222,795

4. As part of the Scheme, the following amendment/addition (in the relevant Article of DCCL) shall be

approved by the members of DCCL (and LSEVL) to be made in Memorandum and Articles of

Association of the residual company (DCCL) to accommodate the issuance of Class B - Redeemable

Shares:

POWERS TO ISSUE SHARES WITH DIFFERENT RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

Subject to the Applicable Law and, in particular, Section 58 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, any Share in the Company may be
issued with different rights, restrictions and privileges, including but not limited to, the
following as may be approved by the Company by way of a Special Resolution:
o different voting rights; voting rights disproportionate to the paid-up value of Shares
held; voting rights for specific purpose only; or no voting rights at all;
o different rights for entitlement of Dividend, right Shares or bonus Shares or
entitlement to receive the notices and to attend the General Meetings;
o different rights for participation in surplus assets in case of liquidation; or no
participation at all;
o rights and privileges for an indefinite period, for a limited specific period or for such
period or periods as may from time to time be determined by the Company; and
o different manner and mode of redemption, including redemption in accordance
with the provisions of these Articles including but not limited to, by way of
conversion into Shares with such rights and privileges as determined by the
Company.
Shares with various rights be issued on terms and conditions that may be determined by the
Board of Directors subject to the approval of shareholders in the General Meeting through
Special Resolution and other necessary statutory approvals, if required.
Rights, privileges, terms and conditions regarding dividend, zero dividend, tracking or non-
tracking, stepped or otherwise, voting rights, cumulative, non-cumulative, participation, non-
participation, conversion, non-conversion, redemption, non-redemption etc., will be defined
in the offering documents and will be considered as integral part of this Article (as a sub-
article).
The issuance of variant classes will be identified through distinctive class names.
The rights, privileges and obligations defined in other Articles, will only be applicable to the
existing ordinary shareholders and variant rights, privileges and obligations of the
shareholders of other classes will be construed according to their respective offering
documents.
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e |n the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Article and any

other Articles, this Article shall prevail.

5. Terms and conditions of Class — B Redeemable Shares is as follows:

1- Name of Security Digital Custodian Company Limited — Class B - Redeemable Share
2- Security Type and Class B - Redeemable Shares
relevant Regularity 1. Section 58 of the Companies Act, 2017
Provisions 2. Section 83 of the Companies Act, 2017
3. The Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020
4. Section 87(4)(d)(i) of the Securities Act, 2015
5. All other enabling provisions under the Securities Act,
2015, the Companies Act, 2017 and other laws, rules and
regulations
3- Participation in No participation unless converted into ordinary shares on
Surplus Assets in occurrence of triggering event. On conversion, new ordinary shares
case of Liquidation issued (on conversion) shall rank pari-passu to the existing ordinary
shares
4- Dividend on Class B Cumulative only to the extent of Base Rate
Share is Cumulative Non-Cumulative over and above Base Rate unless Dividend (over
or Non-Cumulative and above the Base rate) is declared by the Board of Directors of
the Company.
Interim dividend can also be declared by the Board of Directors.
5- Redemption Redeemable partially or in full
6- Redemption Rate Rs. As decided by the Board of Directors of the Company up to the
/Share par/nominal value per share
7- Conversion into Conversion into Ordinary Shares of the Company on occurrence of
Ordinary Shares of the triggering events
the Company
8- Conversion Rate One Class B - Redeemable Share can be converted into [One
Ordinary Share x remaining par value (per share) of Class B -
Redeemable Share divided by 10.00 rounded up to two decimals]
on occurrence of triggering events. Fractional conversion into
ordinary shares shall be ignored.
9- Call Option in Cash Not Applicable
to the Company
10- Put Option in Cash Not Applicable
to the holders of
Class B -
Redeemable Share
11- Par/ Nominal Value Rs. 10.00
/Share
12 - Issue Price Rs. 10.00
/Share
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13- Issuance by way of Issuance under the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction for Amalgamation / Merger of LSE Ventures Limited
with and into Digital Custodian Company Limited under in terms of
provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and all other enabling provisions
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Securities Act, 2015 and
relevant regulations ('the Scheme').

14- Tenor Perpetual unless redeemed in full or partially at the discretion of
the Board of Directors of the Company and can be converted into
Ordinary Shares on triggering events.

15- Instrument Rating Optional

16 - Security / Charge Not Applicable

17 - Voting Rights Voting right of One Class B - Redeemable Share is equivalent to [One
Ordinary Share* x remaining par value (per share) of Class B -
Redeemable Share divided by 10.00 rounded up to two decimals].
Fractional vote shall be ignored.

*(irrespective of the par/nominal value of the Ordinary Share)
Rights, privileges and obligations is as applicable to the Ordinary
Shareholders of the Company.
18- Profit Rate / As to be decided by the Board of Directors from time to time, but to
Dividend be over and above the Base Rate (per Share) without any priority on
any existing Ordinary Shares of the Company.

19- Base Rate (Rs. 1.00 per share per annum multiplied by the remaining par value
(per share) of Class B - Redeemable Share divided by 10.00) to be
paid to the Class B - Redeemable Shareholders latest by end of every
December 31st of each year.

20- Rightto Bonusto Not Applicable

the Class B - No Bonus entitlement (in the form of Sukuk or Shares) to the Class
Redeemable B - Redeemable Shareholders
Shareholders

21-  Any Other Right(s) 1.  Noright to the Right Issue (in the form of Shares or

Sukuks)

2. No Right to Specie Dividend (in any form)

3.  No Right to Dividend (declared and paid to the Ordinary
Shareholders)

22 - Listing It shall be listed on PSX

23 - Shari’ah Compliance Optional

24 -  [ssue Size Rs. Rs. 322,227,950

25 - Issue Size Nos. 32,222,795

26 - Ranking/Priority Priority over any ordinary shares

27 -  Triggering Events 1 —if the winding up (either compulsory or voluntary) of the Issuer

has occurred.
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2 —if a receiver or administrator (or equivalent person in any other
jurisdiction) is appointed over any of the assets of any of the Issuer
or part thereof.

3 — In respect of the issuance of the Class B - Redeemable Share if
the Issuer fails/omits to comply with the Terms and Conditions in
terms thereof in any material respect including payment of three
consecutive dividends that are accrued.

4 — If special resolution is passed by the shareholders (including
Class B - Redeemable Shareholders) in the general meeting to
convert the Class B - Redeemable Share into Ordinary Shares of the
Company at the conversion rate.

28 - Meeting and Since voting rights are vested to the Class B - Redeemable
Resolutions Shareholders, no separate meeting or resolution(s) are required.
Class B - Redeemable Shareholders can convene the general
meeting and pass the resolutions as the shareholders under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

29 - Other Issuance Class B - Redeemable Shares can also be issued to the Ordinary
Shareholders by way of Bonus if declared by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

30- Issuer Digital Custodian Company Limited

PERPETUAL AND CONVERTIBLE SUKUK

1. Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks of DCCL shall also be issued to the shareholders of LSEVL and DCCL
as part of the Scheme.

2. The Digital Custodian Company Limited — Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk shall be issued under the
decision of the Board of Directors who may issue, allot, forfeit, surrender, rectify or otherwise dispose
of the same to such persons, firms, corporation or corporations on such terms and conditions and at
any such time as may be thought fit, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017.

3. As part of the Scheme, the following amendment/addition (in the relevant Article of DCCL) shall be
approved by the members of DCCL (and LSEVL) to be made in Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the residual company (DCCL) to accommodate the issuance of Digital Custodian
Company Limited — Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks.

4. The Distribution Ratio for the issuance of Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks of DCCL, as part of the
additional securities to the shareholders of LSEVL and DCCL shall be as per the following:

No. of Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk to be given to the Shareholders of LSEVL 21,769,440

No. of Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk to be given to the Shareholders of DCCL 10,453,355
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Ratio of Distribution (of Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk) is 20% (of post-merger capital)

5. Terms and conditions of Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks is as follows:

1- Name of the Security Digital Custodian Company Limited — Perpetual and
Convertible Sukuk
2- Security Type and Perpetual and Convertible Sukuks
relevant Regularity 1.  Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2017
Provisions 2. the Issuance of Convertible Debt Securities
through Right Offer Regulations, 2022
3. The Structuring of Debt Securities
Regulations, 2020
4.  Section 87(4)(d)(i) of the Securities Act, 2015
5.  Section 83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017
6. All other enabling provisions under the
Securities Act, 2015, the Companies Act, 2017 and
other laws, rules and regulations
3- Participation in Surplus No participation unless converted into ordinary shares
Assets in case of on occurrence of any of the triggering events. On
Liquidation conversion, new ordinary shares issued (on conversion)
shall rank pari-passu to the existing ordinary shares.
4- Profit (on Debt) is Not Applicable — minimum payment of Base Rate to be
Cumulative or Non- made
Cumulative Non-Cumulative over and above Base Rate unless Profit
Rate (over and above the Base rate) is declared by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
Interim profit can also be declared by the Board of
Directors.
5- Redemption Not Applicable
6- Redemption Rate Rs./ Not Applicable
Certificate
7- Conversion into Conversion into Ordinary Shares of the Company on the
Ordinary Shares of the occurrence of any of the triggering events
Company
8- Conversion Rate One Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk into One
Ordinary Share
9- Call Option in Cash to Not Applicable
the Company
10- Put Option in Cash to Not Applicable
the holders of Perpetual
and Convertible Sukuk
11- Par/ Nominal Value Rs. / 10.00
Certificate
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12 -

Issue Price

Rs./
Certificate

10.00

13-

Issuance by way of

Issuance under the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangement and Reconstruction for Amalgamation /
Merger of LSE Ventures Limited with and into Digital
Custodian Company Limited under in terms of
provisions of Sections 279 To 283 and all other enabling
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the Securities
act, 2015 and the relevant regulations ('the Scheme')

14 -

Tenor

Perpetual unless converted into Ordinary Shares on the
occurrence of any of the triggering events

15 -

Instrument Rating

Instrument Rating (to be obtained)

Long Term:

Short Term:

By JCR-VIS Credit Rating Agency

(Instrument Rating shall be obtained after the
Sanction Date)

16 -

Security / Charge

Pari-passu floating charge on current (present and
future assets). Charge shall be created within the 90
days of the issuance of Sukuk.

17 -

Voting Rights

Voting rights of One Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk is
equivalent to Ordinary Share i.e. One Perpetual and
Convertible Sukuk carries voting right equivalent to One
Ordinary Share (irrespective of the par/nominal value
of the Ordinary Share).

Rights, privileges and obligations is as applicable to the
Ordinary Shareholders of the Company.

18 -

Profit Rate / Dividend

As decided by the Board of Directors over and above
Base Rate (per Sukuk) without any priority on existing
Ordinary Shares of the Company.

19-

Base Rate

Rs. 1.00 per Sukuk per annum to be paid to the
Sukukholders latest by end of every December 31°* of
each year.

20 -

Right to Bonus to the
Perpetual and
Convertible
Sukukholders

Not Applicable

No Bonus entitlement (in the form of Sukuk or Shares)
to the Perpetual and Convertible Sukukholders.

21-

Any Other Right(s)

1. No right to the Right Issue (in the form of
Shares or Sukuk)

2. No Right to Specie Dividend (in any form)

3. No Right to Dividend (declared and paid to
the Ordinary Shareholders).

22 -

Listing

It shall be listed on PSX
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23 - Shari’ah Compliance

Shari’ah Compliant (relevant procedures shall be
complied with after Sanction Date)

24 - Issue Size Rs.

Rs. 322,227,950

25 - Issue Size Nos.

32,222,795

26 - Ranking/Priority

Priority over any other form of shares but subordinate
to any other secured loan (including loans secured by
way of floating charge).

27 - Triggering Events

1 — if the winding up (either compulsory or voluntary)
of the Issuer has occurred.

2 —if a receiver or administrator (or equivalent person
in any other jurisdiction) is appointed over any of the
assets of any of the Issuer or part thereof.

3 —if the Issuer is unable to pay its indebtedness as it
falls due.

4 — In respect of the issuance of the Perpetual and
Convertible Sukuk if the Issuer fails/omits to comply
with the Terms and Conditions in terms thereof in any
material respect including payment of three
consecutive profits that are accrued.

5 — If special resolution is passed by the shareholders
(including Perpetual and Convertible Sukukholders) in
the general meeting to convert the Perpetual and
Convertible Sukuk into Ordinary Shares of the Company
at the conversion rate.

28 - Investment Agent

LSE Capital Limited (or as to be decided by the Board of
Directors of the Issuer)

29- Meeting and
Resolutions

Since voting rights are vested to the Perpetual and
Convertible Sukukholders, no separate meeting or
resolution(s) are required. Perpetual and Convertible
Sukukholders can convene the general meeting and
pass the resolutions as the shareholders under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

30- OtherlIssuance

Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk can also be issued to
the Ordinary Shareholders by way of Bonus (out of shelf
registration) if declared by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

31- Issuer

Digital Custodian Company Limited

32- Shelf Registration

Rs. 500,000,000 (divided into 50,000,000 Sukuk of Rs.
10.00 each)
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SCHEDULE-1 - The Undertaking and Net Assets of LSE Ventures Limited to Digital Custodian
Company Limited
Transfer from LSEVL to DCCL

Rs. in 000

Non-Current Assets
Investment in associates 2,010,641
Intangible assets 6,231
Financial assets 698,985
Long term deposits 100

2,715,957
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 66,789
Advances and prepayments 1,154
Tax refunds due from Government — net 7,703
Cash and bank balances 13,534

89,180

Total Assets 2,805,137
Less :
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred tax (165,225)
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (20,587)
Current portion of lease liabilities -
Provision for taxation (18,012)
Unpaid dividend (54,272)
Unclaimed dividend (15,568)
Total Liabilities (273,664)
Net Worth 2,531,473
Represented by
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 1,088,472
Un-appropriated profits 708,961
Merger/demerger reserve 734,040
Total Equity 2,531,473

- Listing status of LSEVL shall be transferred to DCCL.

DCCL shall be listed on PSX by virtue of merger of LSEVL with and into LSEVL and listing
status of LSEVL (as a transferor) shall be transferred to DCCL (as a transferee). Please
refer to Article - 4 of the Scheme.
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SCHEDULE-2 - List of the shareholders of:
= LSE Ventures Limited
= Digital Custodian Company Limited

List of shareholders will be added on the effective date
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SCHEDULE - 3- The Statement of Financial Position showing Merger Effect

LSEVL DCCL LSEVL DCCL DCCL
November 30, 2023 November 30, 2023 Merger Adjustments After Merger
Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment - 19,237 - - 19,237
Intangible assets 6,231 362,026 - - 368,257
Investment in subsidiaries 369,529 - (269,529) - -
Investment in associates 1,283,266 138,418 727,375 - 2,149,059
Financial assets 753,152 - (54,167) - 698,985
Long term deposits 100 2,184 - - 2,284
2,412,278 521,866 3,237,822
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 66,789 16,580 - - 83,369
Short term investments - 246 - - 246
Advances and prepayments 1,159 2,079 - - 3,233
Tax refunds due from Government - net 7,703 19,388 - - 27,091
Cash and bank balances 13,534 765 - - 14,299
89,180 39,058 128,238
Total Assets 2,501,458 560,924 303,679 - 3,366,061
Authorized share capital 2,000,000 600,000 400,000 3,000,000
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 1,795,979 522,668 (707,507) 789,458 2,400,598
Redeemable Shares - - - 322,228 322,228
Perpetual Sukuk - - - 322,228 322,228
Capital reserves
Merger/demerger reserve 26,533 - 707,507 (734,040) -
Share premium - - -
Fair value reserve 67,073 - (67,073) - -
93,606 - -
Revenue reserves
Un-appropriated profits 338,209 2,474 370,752 (699,874) 11,561
Total equity 2,227,794 525,142 3,056,615
Non-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities - 4,154 - - 4,154
Deferred tax 165,225 8,062 - - 173,287
165,225 12,216 177,441
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20,587 19,468 - - 40,055
Current portion of lease liabilities - 4,098 - - 4,098
Provision for taxation 18,012 - - - 18,012
Unpaid dividend 54,272 - - - 54,272
Unclaimed dividend 15,568 - - - 15,568
108,439 23,566 132,005
Equity and Liabilities 2,501,458 560,924 303,679 - 3,366,061
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SCHEDULE-4 - Transfer of Staff and Employees

Transfer of Employees from LSEVL to DCCL
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SCHEDULE -5 - The Statement of Financial Position —

- LSE Ventures Limited
- Digital Custodian Company Limited

As attached
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SCHEDULE-6 - Statement of Financial Position of DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED immediately after Merger Effect
Before ierger Transfer from Merger After VMerger
DCCL LSEVL Adjustments DCCL
ASSETS Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000 Rs. in 000
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment 19,237 - - 19,237
Intangible assets 262,026 6,221 - 268,257
Investment in subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in associates 128,418 2,010,641 - 2,149,059
Financial assets - 698,985 - 698,985
Long term deposits 2,184 100 - 2,284
521,866 2,715,957 2,237,822
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 16,580 66,789 - 83,3269
Short term investments 246 - - 246
Advances and prepayments 2,079 1,154 - 3,233
Tax refunds due from Government - net 19,388 7,703 - 27,091
Cash and bank balances 765 12,524 - 14,299
39,058 829,180 128,238
Total Assets 560,924 2,805,137 - 2,366,061
Authorized share capital 600,000 2,000,000 (400,000) 2,000,000
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 522,668 1,088,472 (789,458) 2,400,598
Redeemable Shares - (222,228) 322,228
Perpetual Sukuk - (222,228) 222,228
Capital reserves
Merger/demerger reserve - 734,040 734,040 -
Share premium - - -
Fair value reserve - - -
Revenue reserves
Un-appropriated profits 2,474 708,961 699,874 11,561
Total equity 525,142 2,531,473 3,056,615
MNon-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 4,154 - - 4,154
Deferred tax 8,062 165,225 - 173,287
12,216 165,225 177,441
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19,468 20,587 - 40,055
Current portion of lease liabilities 4,098 - - 4,098
Provision for taxation - 18,012 - 18,012
Unpaid dividend - 54,272 - 54,272
Unclaimed dividend - 15,568 - 15,568
23,566 108,439 132,005
Equity and Liabilities 560,924 2,805,137 - 3,366,061
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Schedule-7 -

1. SWAP Ratio Certificate is attached

2. Effective SWAP Ratio and Distribution Ratio

SWAP Ratio, Distribution Ratio and Effective SWAP Ratio

Shareholders
LSEVL

Common Shares i.e. Ordinary Shares of DCCL*

Adjusted Shares i.e. Additional Ordinary Shares of DCCL
Additional Securities

Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk

Class B - Redeemable Shares

* 606 shares of DCCL against 1,000 shares of LSEVL

Effective SWAP Ratio for the shareholders of LSE Ventures Limited
(for all Securities)

Distribution to the shareholders of Digital Custodian Company Limited

Adjusted Shares i.e. Additional Ordinary Shares of DCCL
Additional Securities

Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk

Class B - Redeemable Shares

J1117117717174771117177717117774717 1717777111147

60.60%
49.00%

20.00%

20.00%

1.145

49.00%

20.00%
20.00%

of Pre-Merger Capital
of Post-Merger Capital

of Post-Merger Capital
of Post-Merger Capital

Shareholders
LSEVL

108,847,200
53,335,128

21,769,440
21,769,440

205,721,208

Shareholders
DCCL

25,610,720

10,453,355
10,453,355
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Schedule-8
PROPOSED SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS FOR ADOPTION BY THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IN THE MATTER OF THE SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION FOR THE AMALGAMATION/
MERGER OF LSE VENTURES LIMITED WITH & INTO DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED

The Board of Directors of LSE Ventures Limited and Digital Custodian Company Limited in their meetings, held on January 30, 2024, have approved
the following Special resolutions, and have recommended for the adoption of the same as special resolutions in the EOGM of the Company, to be
convened under the orders of the Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC), Lahore:

1. “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 279 to 283 of the Companies, Act, 2017 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
and subject to the sanction by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the merger/amalgamation of LSE Ventures Limited (‘Transferor
Company’) with and into Digital Custodian Company Limited (‘Transferee Company’) as per the Scheme of Amalgamation/Merger, as placed
before the shareholders, be and are hereby approved.

2. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme of merger/amalgamation of LSE Ventures Limited (& its Members) with and into Digital Custodian
Company Limited (& its Members), be and is hereby specifically approved.

3. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT over and above the swap ratio, having been determined by M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered
Accountants, the decision of the Board for the approval of the distribution ratio under the method of effective swap ratio involving three equity
components - namely, common shares allocation under basic swap ratio (of 0.606, i.e.,, 606 common/ordinary shares of DCCL against every
1000 shares of LSEVL), adjusted shares allocation (of 490 shares to the shareholders of each of the merging companies), and additional securities
allocation (of 20% of the post-merger capital of the merging companies comprising of Class B - Redeemable Shares and Perpetual & Convertible
Sukuks), under this Scheme for the overall beneficial allotment of equity shares be and is hereby specifically approved/ratified.

4. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the shareholders be and is hereby also granted to the terms and conditions as set out in the draft
Scheme of Amalgamation/Merger, which includes, inter-alia, the following:

a) That all asset and liabilities including Income Tax and all other statutory liabilities of the Transferor Company (LSE Ventures Limited)
will be transferred to and shall vest in the Transferee Company, i.e., Digital Custodian Company Limited (as described in Schedule -1
of the Scheme);

b) That the Scheme of Amalgamation/Merger shall be effective from Effective Date, the provisions of the Scheme, so far as they relate to
transfer and vesting of the business and undertaking(s) of the Transferor Company (as described in Schedule - 1, Schedule - 3 and
Schedule - 6 of the Scheme) into the Transferee Company, shall be applicable and come into operation from the Sanction Date or such
other date as the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore may approve;
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c) That all the employees of the Transferor Company (i.e. LSE Ventures Limited), if any, in service on the date immediately preceding the
date on which Scheme finally takes effect, i.e., the Effective Date, shall become the employees of the Transferee Company, i.e., Digital
Custodian Company Limited (as described in Schedule - 4 of the Scheme) on such date without any break or interruption in service
and upon terms and conditions not less favorable than those subsisting in the concerned Transferor Company on the said date;

d) That the listing status of the LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) with the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and eligibility status (of
LSEVL) with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) along with all privileges, rights and liabilities of the Transferor
Company with PSX and CDC shall be transferred in the name of Digital Custodian Company Limited (as described in the Scheme).

e) Furthermore, the additional securities issued under this Scheme, i.e., Class B - Redeemable Shares and Perpetual and Convertible
Sukuks of DCCL shall also stand listed subject to the submission of the certified copy of the sanction Order of the Scheme and necessary
requisite formalities with regards to listing of these securities to PSX.

5. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors of LSE Ventures Limited and Digital Custodian
Company Limited to amend any of the Swap ratio, Distribution ratio and/ or Effective Swap ratio, as the case may be, if advised or directed by
the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, for the issuance of common shares and additional securities of Digital Custodian Company Limited
to the shareholders of the LSE Ventures Limited.

6. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in order to accommodate the future business of the merged entity, i.e., DCCL, the proposed changes, as attached
with Schedule - 9 of the Scheme in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of DCCL, be and are hereby specifically and individually
resolved to be adopted.

7. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded to the terms and conditions as deliberated in the Article-6 of the Scheme
for issuance of additional securities and no further approval is required from the shareholders for their issuance.

8. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, for the possible
conversion of 32,222,795 Digital Custodian Company Limited - Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk into 32,222,795 ordinary shares of Digital
Custodian Company Limited on triggering events as deliberated in the Scheme.

9. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval be and is hereby accorded to approve the shelf registration of further Rs. 500,000,000 divided into
50,000,000 Digital Custodian Company Limited - Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk of Rs. 10/- each that can be issued to the existing
shareholders as a bonus or right.

10. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017 for the possible

conversion of further 50,000,000 Digital Custodian Company Limited - Perpetual and Convertible Sukuk (as kept under Shelf Registration) into
50,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company on triggering events as deliberated in the Scheme.

J1117117717174771117177717117774717 1717777111147 45|Page



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any delay or non-approval of the registration/licensing of the Transferee Company to act as a central depository
for performing functions as described in the Scheme; the merger of the companies as per the instant Scheme, shall not be affected because the
same is hereby considered beneficial for the shareholders of both the companies.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 279 to 283 of the Companies, Act, 2017 and other applicable provisions,
necessary joint/separate application(s), petition(s) and may be moved by the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary of Digital
Custodian Company Limited singly before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, for seeking its directions as to convening, holding and
conducting of any meeting(s) of the shareholders and creditors (if any) or dispensation thereof, as the case may be, including for the appointment
of the Chairman, issuance and dispatch of notices and placement of advertisements and for seeking any other directions as the Honorable Lahore
High Court, Lahore, may deem fit and proper and for seeking the approval of the proposed amalgamation/ merger and the proposed Scheme
of Amalgamation/Merger.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive or the Company Secretary of Digital Custodian Company Limited and/or LSE Ventures
Limited (as the case may be), be and is hereby singly authorized to sign, submit or present necessary applications, petitions, supplementary
applications/ petitions, summons, deeds, documents, instruments, rejoinders, replies, and to swear affidavits or execute bonds for the above-
mentioned amalgamation/merger to the competent authorities including but not limited to Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the Securities
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan, and the Competition Commission of Pakistan.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary of Digital Custodian Company Limited, be and are hereby
singly authorized to submit the certified true copies of the resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company (i.e., respective company/
corporate undertaking) to the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the Registrar of Companies, the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and such other competent authorities, if necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer, or the Company Secretary of Digital Custodian Company Limited, be and are
hereby singly authorized:

a) To sign, submit or present necessary applications, petitions, supplementary applications/ petitions, summons, deeds, documents,
instruments, rejoinders, replies, and to swear affidavits or execute bonds for the above-mentioned amalgamation/ merger;

b) To engage any counsel(s)/advocate(s)/consultant(s) to file the application(s) and petition(s) before the Honorable Lahore High
Court, Lahore, and to do other needful tasks;

c) To appear [in person or through representative(s)] before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore; the Offices of the Registrar of
the Companies; the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan; the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and/or before any other
authority or person in connection with the aforesaid amalgamation/merger; and

d) To do any other act, deed or thing which may be ancillary or incidental to the above-mentioned matter or which may otherwise be
required for the aforesaid purposes.”
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SCHEDULE: 9 Proposed Amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Digital Custodian Company Limited

As attached
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Schedule-9

Proposed Amendments in the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Digital Custodian

Company Limited

For approval by the Shareholders via Special Resolutions

Memorandum of Association: -

Clause
No.

Existing Text

Amended Text

\Y

The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs.
600,000,000 (Rupees Six hundred million) divided into
60,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each with powers
to the Company from time to time to increase and
reduce its capital.

The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs.
3,000,000,000 (Rupees Three billion only) divided
into 260,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each and
40,000,000 shares of any other class(es) of Rs. 10
each, with the powers to the Company to increase
and reduce its capital from time to time.

44

For the purposes of the Company to borrow or raise or
secure the payment of money in accordance with
Shariah by issue of modaraba certificates, musharaka
certificates, participation term certificates, term
finance certificates, debentures or debenture stock,
perpetual or otherwise and whether charged or not
charged upon the whole or my part of the property of
the Company (both present and future), whether
payable to bearer or otherwise;

For the purposes of the Company to borrow or raise
or secure the payment of money in accordance with
Shariah principles, by way of issuance of Sukuks or
term finance certificates, or debentures or debenture
stock, whether perpetual or convertible or
otherwise, and whether charged or not charged
upon the whole or any part of the property of the
Company (both present and future), either through
fresh offering or bonus or right entitlement or
otherwise, and to convert such Sukuks or other
Shariah compliant debt securities into the
ordinary/common shares of the Company on any
future date, on such terms and conditions as to be
approved by the shareholders in the general




meeting, and to pay off to the holders or to their
order or otherwise;

Articles of Association: -

Article No.

Existing Text

Amended Text

3

The Authorised capital of the Company is Rs.
600,000,000 (Rupees six hundred million) only
divided into 60,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10
each.

The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs.
3,000,000,000 (Rupees Three billion only) divided
into 260,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each and
40,000,000 shares of any other class(es) Rs. 10 each.

New Clause

New Clause

23A. a) Subject to the Applicable Law and, in
particular, Section 58 of the Companies Act, 2017
and the Companies (Further Issue of Shares)
Regulations, 2020, any Share in the Company may
be issued with different rights, restrictions and
privileges, including but not limited to the
followings, as may be approved by the Company by
way of a Special Resolution: -

i) different voting rights; voting rights
disproportionate to the paid-up value of
Shares held; voting rights for specific
purpose only; or no voting rights at all;

ii) different rights for entitlement of
Dividend, right Shares or bonus Shares or
entitlement to receive the notices and to
attend the General Meetings;

iii) different rights for participation in
surplus assets in case of liquidation; or no
participation at all;




b)

iv) rights and privileges for an indefinite
period, for a limited specific period or for
such period or periods as may from time
to time be determined by the Company;
and

v) different manner and mode of
redemption, including redemption in
accordance with the provisions of these
Articles including but not limited to, by
way of conversion into Shares with such
rights and privileges as determined by the
Company.

Shares with various rights be issued on terms and
conditions that may be determined by the Board
of Directors subject to the approval of
shareholders in the General Meeting through
Special Resolution and other necessary statutory
approvals, if required.

Rights, privileges, terms and conditions
regarding dividend, zero dividend, tracking or
non-tracking, stepped or otherwise, voting rights,
cumulative, non-cumulative, participation, non-
participation, conversion, non-conversion,
redemption, non-redemption etc., will be defined
in the offering documents.

The issuance of variant classes will be identified
through distinctive class names.




e) The rights, privileges and obligations defined in

other Articles, will only be applicable to the
existing ordinary shareholders and variant rights,
privileges and obligations of the shareholders of
other classes will be construed according to their
respective offering documents.

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency
between the provisions of this Article and any
other Articles, this Article shall prevail.
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Digital Custodian Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at November 30, 2023, and the statement of profit
or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows for the period from July 01, 2023 to November 30, 2023 and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at November 30, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the period from July 01, 2023 to November 30, 2023 in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework for the purpose as stated in Note 3.1 of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting along
with the purpose of preparing these financial statements. As a result, the financial statements may not
be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with basis of
accounting described in Note 3.1 to the financial statements, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends L0 liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable In Pakistan, we exercise professional Judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to these risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may invoke collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness ‘of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our Conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

=  We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In Internal
control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Usman

Shah, ACA.
g q@«

LaHORE: 3 () JAN 2024/ KRESTON HYD BHIMJi& c
i CHARTERED AFCOUNTANTS




. DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT NOVEMBER 30, 2023

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
Note Rupees
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 6 19,236,786 21,689,925
Intangible assets i 362,026,397 362,032,157
Long term deposits 8 2,184,366 2,184,36¢
Investment in associate 9 138,418,070 85,328,551
521,865,619 471,234,984
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 10 16,580,434 16,469,132
Short term investments 11 246,277 226,454
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 12 2,078,635 57,929,701
Tax refunds due from the Government 13 19,388,156 14,726,976
Cash and bank balances 14 764,532 2,064,864
39,058,034 91,417,132
TOTAL ASSETS 560,923,653 562,652,131
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issuad, subscribed and paid up share capital
Authorized share capital
60,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 15 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 15 522,667,768 522,667,764
Revenue reserves
Unappropriated profit/(Accumulated loss) 2,474,204 (133,951)
Shareholders’ equity 525,141,972 522,533,817
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liability 16 4,154,158 5,959,493
Deferred taxation 17 8,061,734 5,951,421
12,215,892 11,910,914
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of lease liability 16 4,097,710 | 3,819,107
Accrued and other liabilities 18 19,468,079 ‘ 24 388,293
23,565,789 28,207,400
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 560,923,653 562,652,131

The annexed noctesAre

to 34 form an integral of these financial statements.

Director




DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
Note Rupees

Operating income 20 49,834,117 98,143,332
Operating and administrative expenses 21 (43,630,558) (88,831,123)
Operating profit 6,203,559 9,312,209
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of investments

classified at fair value through profit or loss 1 2,765 300,472
Post tax share of profit / (loss) from associate 9 3,089,519 (366,924)
Other income 22 393,798 9,206,582
Finance cost 23 (384,729) (1,163,59%)
Profit before taxation 9,304,912 17,288,744
Provision for taxation 24 (6,696,758) (11,930,942)
Profit after taxation 2,608,154 5,357,802
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 25 0.05 0.11

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral of these financial statements.
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Chief Executive Officer Director




n DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
Rupees Rupegs
Note Rupees
Profit after taxation 2,608,154 5,357,802

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
=1 2 TECassilied to statement of profit or loss

Post tax share of other comprehensive income from assaociate 11 = 1,858,531
Deferred tax liability attributable to share of income from associate

- (278,780)
Other comprehensive income s 1,579,751
Total comprehensive income 2,608,154 6,937,553

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral of these financial statements.

”QY%"/
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DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

Brbisin ol Revenue Reserves -
Share Capital it Unappropriated TOTAL
share issued
profit
Rupees

Palance. o6 a Jura. 20, 2022 111,100,000 48,900,000 (7.071504) 152,928,498
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - 5,357,802 5,357,802

Other comprehensive income - - 1,579,751 1,679,751

- - 6,937,553 - 6,937,553

Transactions with the owners

Share capital issued during the year 60,444 620 - - 60,444 62(

Premium on issuance of shares - 302,223,148 - 302,223,144

Bonus shares issued during the year 351,123,148 (351,123,148) = -
Balance as at June 30, 2023 522,667,768 - (133,951) 522,533,817
Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the pericd - - 2,608,154 2,608,154

Other comprehensive iIncome - - - -

— = 2,608,154 2,6081&

Transactions with the owners

Share capital issued during the period - - - -

Premium on issuance of shares - - - -

Bonus shares issued during the period - - - -
Balance as at November 30, 2023 522,667,768 - 2,474,204 525,141,97

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral of these financial statements.

v
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DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash charges and items
Depreciation of operating fixed assets

Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Balance receivable written off

Dividend income

Share of (profit) / loss from associates

Fair value gain on investments through profit or loss
Finance cost

Profit on musharaka finance

Profit on saving bank accounts

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Trade receivables
Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Accrued and other liabilities

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes
Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Finance cost paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of operating fixed assets
Disbursement of advance against vehicles
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets

Short term investments made during the period / year
Dividend income received

Proceeds on redemption of investments

Profit on musharaka finance

Profit on saving bank accounts received
Increase in long term deposits

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

The annexed ng

‘l
I

{

Chief Exe 20

7 1 to 34 form an integral of these financial statements.
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6.3
11
1
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November 30, June 30
2023 2023
wmmmename-—-RUPEES -mmmm e ened
9,304,912 17,288,744
2,633,739 6,582 B42
: 576,384
5,760 13814
- 1,976,662
(20,068) (31,875)
(3,089,519) 366,024
(2,765) (300.472)
384,729 1,163 p95
5 (6.811,p44)
(373,730) (2,363 563)
8,843,058 18,461,911
(111,302) (10,508,p45)
5,851,066 (58,208,b60)
5,739,764 (68,717,p05)
(4,820,214) 20,073,670
819,549 (48,643 1135)
9,662,607 (30,181,524)
(384,729) (1,163,p95)
(9,247,625) (21,121,049)
(9,632,354) (22,284,B44)
30,253 (52,466,B68)
(180,600) (1,096,669)
: (5,500,p00)
. 1,635,000
(17,058) (45,081,515)
20,068 31,R75
- 47,000,p00
= 6,811,644
373,731 2,363,553
5 (103,966)
196,141 6,059,432
(1,526,732)] | (3.205.218)]
(1,526,732) (3,205,218)
(1,300,337) (49,612,154)
2,064,869 51,67?.1}23
764,532 2,064,869
Director <




DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Digital Custodian Comgany Limited (“the Company") was incorporated on February 12, 1892 under the repealed Companies
Orainance. 1984 as a private limited company. The Company converted its status from Private Limited Company to Unlisted|Public

Limited Company on June 19, 2009,

The principal objects of the Company are to act as Trustee of investment trust schemes, voluntary pension schemes, and real|estate
investment trust schemes, to provide custodian services and to act as transfer agent/share registrar of securities of listed and uplisted
companies and mutual fund etc. The company had changed its registered office address from the Province of Sindh to the Province of
Punjab. At present, the registered office of the company is located at Office # 08, 5th floor, LSE Plaza, Aiwan-e-lgbal Road, Uahore,

Punjab.

As previously stated, due to change in agreement between ISE Towers Reit Management Company Limited and Info Tech (Frivate)

Limited (i.e. shareholders of the Company) and consequent change in composition of board of directors of the Company on N]:y 13,

2022 (effective date) the ISE Towers Reit Management lost its control over the company. Accordingly, the ISE Tower

Reit

Management had derecognized its investment in the Company as subsidiary and reclassified it as associated company in accofdance

with the requirement of the International Financial Reporting Standards.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board of Direclors of the Company in their meeting held on 22 December 2023 has ded

ded a

proposed plan for the merger of LSE Ventures Limited, an associated company, with/into the company subject to the approval ¢f plan

by the members of the company in their upcoming EOGM.

These financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of filing a petition for the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction for Amalgamation/Merger (in terms of provisions of Sections 279 To 283 and all other enabling provisions ¢f The

Companies Act, 2017) and to determine the SWAP ratio under the Scheme: for onward approval by the Honorable Lahore High
after completion of all related corporate and legal formalities, The effective date of the Scheme is November 30, 20223 or as apj
By the Honorabie Lahare High Court.

Upoit the completion of merger / amalgamation of the LSE Ventures Limited with/into the company through the intended Schen
LSE Ventures Limited will be dissolved under the Order of the Honorable Lahare High Court, Lahore without winding up and its 4

Court
roved

e, the
hares

stand cancelled and the shares of the company shall be issued to the registered members / sharenolders of the LSE Vehtures

Limited. Further, the listing status of LSE Ventures Limitad shall be transferred to the company and necessary changes will be

made

in the Memorandum of Association of the company to accommodate the business operations of LSE Ventures Limited after the

proposed takeover of its business by the company along with the obtaining of necessary licensing requirements in this regard.

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Paj
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International ' inancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act. 2017: and

= Provssions of ana directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisiors of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions d
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial slatements have been prepared under the historical cost conventicn except for the following items, without takin
account the effects of infiation:

- certain financial assets short term investments measured at FVEL,
- financiai assets which are carried at value determined after the provision of impairment under expected credit loss approach,
- investiment in associate carried at equity methoo of acsounting;

- Financial liabilities at amortized cost are measured using the effective rate of interest after deducling the transaction costs;

%
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341

343
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- Deferred tax liabililies recognized at amounts in accordance with IAS 12; and
- Provisions are recognized at amounts reflecting the best estimate and contingencies are disclosed in accordance with IAS 37.

In these financial statements, accrual basis of accounting has been used except for the statement of cash flows.

Functional currency

The functionai currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the environr
which it primarily generates and expends cash). In these financial statements, all the financial information is presented in P3
Rupee which is the company's functional currency.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s acc
policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation ©
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circunstances, the result of which forms the basis of making the judgment
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognize

hent in
kistani

critical
bunting
I future
5 about
these

i in the

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periodp if the

revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where judgments made in applying accounting policies and
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company'’s financial statements or where judgments were exercised in applic
accounting policies are as follows:

Note
- Useful lives, residual values and patterns of ecenomic benefits - Property & equipment and intangible assets B1&7
- Recoverable amount of non-financial assets and impairment 5.3(C)
- Impairment of financial assets 5.3(C)
- Allowance for expected credit losses 54
- Taxation 5.7
- Staff retirement benefits 58
- Valuation of investments measured at FVPL 5.3(a)(ii)
- Contingent liabilities 59
- Provisions - 5.10

Useful lives and residual values of Property & equipment and intangible assets

various
ation of

The Company reviews the useful life and residual value of property and equipment on regular basis to determine that expectatipns are
not significantly changed frem the previous estimates. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of agsels is
made for possibie impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources ayailable
with it Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with

corresponding effects on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment, if any

Recoverable amount of non financial assets and impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its non financial assels and cash generating units for
impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount If there is any such indication

impairment of financial assets

ossible

Impairment of financial assets is assessed by reviewing their market prices and the indicators used to determine the recoverable

amounts of the financial assets Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any ind
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The aliowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and juogement. It is based on the

cations

lifetime

axpected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss frate for

each group. These assumptions include historical collection rates and forward looking information for macro economic Tac
interest rates, inflation ratas, unemployment rates, GDP rates etfc.

Taxation

Instances where the Company's view differs with the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage ang

ors Le.

where

the Company considers that its view on items of a materia!l nature is in accordance with the law, the amounts are shown as coptingent

liabilites.

s,




3.46  siaff retirement benefits

2 The company considers the salary scale of each employee eligible under the provident fund scheme and its employment stafus on
monthly bas's to ensure the adequacy of expense and rejated lianility on account of provident fund

347  Vyaluation of investments measured at FVPL

The Company has recorded its investments measured at FVPL by using quotations from Pakistan Stock Exchange. This valuation is
subjective to market price fluctuation and therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

148 Contingent liabilities

The Company has disclosed significant contingent liabilities for the pending litigations and claims against it based on its judngt and
the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can hgve an
effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date. However, based on the best judgment jof the
Modaraba and its legal advisors. the likely outcome of these litigations and claims is remote and there is no need to recognire any
liability at the reporling date.

349  Provision

The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting date. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

* NEW STANDARDS / AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are mandatory for the Conlpany’s
annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2023, However, these do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial
statements.

#4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective for the period
ended November 30, 2023

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the period ended Nevember 30, 2023. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's cperations or are not expected to have significant immact on
the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting pgriod

d i rpretati f
Standard or Interpretation baginning on or after:

Amendments io IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual framework January 01, 2032
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (related to IFRS 8, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) January 01, 2022
Amandments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022
Amerndments tc IAS 27 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingant Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost January 01, 2032
of fulfilling & contract

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities as current or non- January 01, 2023
current '

Amendments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financia' Statements' - Disclosure of accounting policies January 01, 2023
Amendments 1o IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Definition of January 01, 2023
accounting estimates

Amendments 1o 'IAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assels and liabilities arising from a single January 01, 2C23
transaction

Amendments to '|IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows' January 01, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Centracts' - expiry date of the deferral approach. January 01, 20P3

42 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet eifective

The follewing standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting and reporting standprds as
anplicable in Pakistan and reievant to the Company, would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the regpective

stardard or interpretation:
G,
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Effective from accounting [pericd

beginning on or aftef:
Standard or Interpretation

e Amendments to 'IFRS 16 Leases' - January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Deferred indefinite
Associate or Joint Venture

Y

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have any maienal |impact
on the Company's financial statements.

43 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has
also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt py the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30, 2023;

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
- IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policigs have
been applied consistently to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

5.1 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and recognized accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost
comprises purchase price, non refundable duties and taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes borrowing cost
pertaining to erection / construction period of qualifying assets and other expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acauigition of
the underlying asset and is ancillary in bringing the asset to working condition as intended by the management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future eccnomic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be mgasured
reliabiy. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incprred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged for the njonth in
which the assets are disposed off. Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss by applying the straight line methog at the
rates as disclosed in Note 6 to these financial statements.

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each reporting date and adjusted if impact on deprgciation
is significant.
Residual values are determined by the management as the amount it expects it would receive currently for an item of propgrty and
equipment if it was already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life based on the prevailing marke} prices
of similar assets already at the end of their useful lives. Useful lives are determined by the management based on the expecteq usage
of assets, physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the assets ard other
similar factors.

De-recognition

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expecled from itg use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the perioo the sssetis
de-recognized.

52  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and that the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Generally, costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an expense as
incurred. However, costs that are directly associated with identifiabie software and have probable economic benefits exceealng one
period are capilalized. Direct costs include the purchase cosi of software and related overhead cost Intangible assets apguired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible sssets are carried at cdst less
accumulated amortization and recognized accumulated impairment losses, if any, thereon. Internally generated Intangibles, excluding
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss In the period in which the

expenditure 1s incurred.
\(1 fr,
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Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specificaticn and usefll life is

recognized as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

intangible asset with finite lives is amortized on straight-line basis over its useful economic life at the rates specified in Note 7

o these

financial statements and the resulting amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss. Amortization on additions is chafged for

the full month in which the asset is acquired while no amortization is charged in the month of its disposal. The estimated us

eful life

and amortization methaod are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimafe being
accounted for on a prospective basis, if the impact of amortization is significant. The carrying amount of the intangible asspts with
finite lives is also reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in the circumstances indicate that the carrying amolint may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss for the amount by which the asset's farrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversal of impairment losses are also recognized in the statement of profit pr loss,

however, it is restricted to the criginal cost of the asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either Individually or at the cash

generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continug
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from Indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis

amount cannot be measured reliably. Gain or loss arising on disposal of intangible asset is represented by the difference be
sale proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognized as an income or expense in the statement of profit or |

An intangible asset is derecognized when the future economic benefits embodying in the asset will not flow to the Companéjind the
S

Research and development costs for Block Chain Software

Research costs are expensed as Incurred. Development expenditures on an Individual project are recognized as an intangib
when the Company can demonstrate:

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale;
« Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset;

* How the assel will generate future economic benefits;

» The availability of resources to complete the asset;

= The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initia! recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset Is carried at cost less any accumulated imy

s to be

en the
S,

e asset

airment

losses. The Company's core business is to use Block Chain Software to process data and extract various reports and analys{s which

makes the Block Chain Software a key asset for the Company's operations. Block Chain Software is the first of its kind blog

kchain-

native platform for any capital market infrastructure operator company in Pakistan for providing user friendly facilities to its cuftomers

to penetrate the market and to introduce new business segmenis
Other accounting and operational scftware
The company made upfront payments to software developers against the acquisition of accounting and operational softy

business use.

The following policies are being applied to the company's scltwares:

vare for

Block Chain Accounting and
Software operational sofiware
Useful lives Indefinite Finite (10 years)
Amortization method No amortization Amortization on straight line
, basis over useful life
Internally generated or acquired Internally generated Acquired

Financial insiruments

Financial instruments aie any contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instru
another entity. The financial instruments include non-derivative ano derivative financial instruments. Assets or liabilities that
contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements imposed by the Government are not the f
instruments of the Company. Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include long term deposit
receivables, short term investments, other receivables. due from related parties, cash and bank balences and accrusd

‘iabilities and due to related parties etc.
rh
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a) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a pariy to the contraclual provisions of the financial instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase
or sell the asset The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive incomg or fair
value through profit or loss in the context of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the confractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

i- Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to| collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arg solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive inccme are held within a business model whose objective is achigved by
both collecting confractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give fise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding

ili- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets which are either designated in this category or not
ciassified in any of the other categories.

Financial assets which are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value plus transactiof costs.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expehsed in
the statement of profit or loss.

Gains ana losses arising on financial assets at amortized cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recogfized in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest calculated under effective interest method, dividend, impairment and foreign exchangp gains
and losses on financiai assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are also recognized in the statement of profit por loss.
Gains and losses from changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recoanized in
other comprehensive income and are reclassified to statement of profit or loss on derecognition or reclassification.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferfed and
the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associaled with its financial assets carried at anjortized
cast and fair value through profit or loss and other comprenensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For irade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach| which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

In appiying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

Step 1. financial instruments that have not detericrated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or that have low credit risk;
Step 2. financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is not iow!
Step 3:  financial assels that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date;

b) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company hecomes a parly fo the contractual provisions of the instfument.
Financial liabilities at amortized costs are initially measured at fair value minus transacticn costs. Financia! liabilities at fafr value
tnrough profit or loss are initially recognized at fair vaiue and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost uging the
eifective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligaticn under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an gxisting
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender cn substantially different terms, cr the terms of an existing liabjiity are
substantially madified, such an exchange and madification s treated as a derecognition of tha original liabilily and the recognitjcn of a
new liahility, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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c¢) Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events had a negative effec
estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost and at fair value through profit or loss an
comprehensive income is caiculated on basis of "expected credit losses” model.

individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are ag
collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts cf the Company's nen-financial assels are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whethar thers
indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment
recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recogr

on the

d other

sessed

2 is any

loss is
ized in

statement of profit or loss. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimatés used

to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying anf
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would hay
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recog
statement of profit or loss.

d) De-recognition
i Financial assets

ount of
e been
hized in

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the zsset expire, or it transfers the

rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershit
financial assel are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and d
retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the C
is recognized as a separate asset or liability

il. Financial liabilities
The, Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position wi

obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

e) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is

b of the
bes not
bmpany

ien the

a legal

enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities

simultaneouslv

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debte and other receivabies are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost uging the

effective interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

The Company has applied the simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expect
allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Right-of-use asscts and their related lease liability
Right of-use assets

measured at cost whicn comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or be
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying as
restore the underlying assat or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

\

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liablity at the lease commencement date. The right of use asset i}initially

pd loss
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the reducing balance method from the commencement date to the ed

arlier of

the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are

determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically redu
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lease liability against right-of-use assets

ced by

The lease liabilities are initially measured as the preseht value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the intergst rate

implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of the following:

fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments,

variable lease payments that depend on an index, or a rate, inifially measured using the index or rate as at commencement dafe.

amount expected to be payable under a residual guaraniee, and

the exercise under purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an aptional renewal period
if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of lease unless the Company

is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method It is remeasured when fthere is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in Company's estimate of the pmount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exgrcise a

purchase or termination option. These remeasurements of lease liabilities are recognized as adjustments to the carrying an
related right-of-use assets after the date of initial recognition.

ount of

Fach lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement

of profit or loss as markup expense over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the re
balance of the liability for each period.

Accrued and other liabilities

naining

Accrued and other liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating

cycle of business, if longer), if not, they are classified as non-current liabilities. These are stated at cost, which is fair
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the company.

Taxation

alue of

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized the statement of profit or loss except to the extent

that it relates lo items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into consideration availpble tax

credits and rebates, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments where considered necessary, relating

o prior

years which arise from assessments framed / finalized during tne period. The charge for the current year also includes adjustnjents for

prior periods, if any.

Ije'ferred

Deferred tax 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from diffprences
between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base Defgred tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. The Company recognizes deferred tax asset on all deductible lemporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these deductible tenporary

differences, unused tax fosses and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of deierred tax assets is reviewed at each |i

nancial

position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all of part of

the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rgtes that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the stalement of jprofit or
loss, except where deferred tax arises on the items credited or charged to comprehensive income or directly to the equity. |n which

case it is adjusted in statement of comprehensive income or statement of changes in equity.
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5.8 Staff retirement benefits

: The Company operates recognized provident fund scheme covering all its permanent employees. The employees become eligible
under the scheme if they successfully receive confirmation about their permanent employment status which is usually afteq wo to
three months from the first day of their joining. Equal contributions @ 8.33% per month are made both by the Company and
employees to the fund.

58  Contingent liabilities
These are not accounted for in the financial statements unless these are actual liabilities and are only disclosed when:

there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence|or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company; or

there is present obligation that arises from past events bul it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the ebligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the futurg events
cannot be predicted with certainty. The company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimatas the value of copiingent
assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-sccurrence of the uncertain future events not wholiy within the cpntroi of
the Caompany.

The Company has disclosed significant contingent liabilities for the pending litigations and claims against the Company basgd on its
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome. The actual outcome of these litigations angl claims
can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the financial position date. However, based on [he best
judgment of the Company and its legal advisors, the likely outcome of these litigations and claims is remote and there is no|need to
recognize any liability at the reporting date.

510 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of pasl events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of thelamount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date to refiect current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that ar) outflow
of economic resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired lo settle the obligation, the provisions are reversed.

511 |nvestments in equity instruments of associated companies

lnvestments in associated companies where significant influence can be established are accounted for using the equity method
Under this method. the investments are stated at cost plus the Company's equity in undistiibuted earnings and losges after
acquisition, less any impairment in the value of individual investment. income en investments in associated companies Is regognized
using the equity method. Under this method, the Company's share of post-acquisition profit or loss cf the associated comganies is
included in profit or loss, its share of post-acquisition other comprehensive income or loss is included in other comprehensive income
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves. Dividend distribution by the associated companies
is adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Unrealized gains on transactions between the Company and its agsociates
are eliminated to the extent of the Company s interest in the associate. -

512 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of statement of cash flops, cash
equivalents are short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, which are spibject to
insignificant changes n value, cash in hand, cash at bank in current & saving accounts and book overdrawn balanceg. In the
statement of financial position, book overdrawn balances are in included in current liabilities, if any

513 Revenue recognition
Revenue and income from different sources s recognized as under;

Revenue from trusteeship and custodian business is recognized when the Company salisfies a perfermance obligation by fendering
promised services as per respective agreements

Dividend income is recegnized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established.
profit on bank balances is accounted for on time proportion basis under the effeclive yield method

A ¥




Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on remeasurement of investments classified as financial assets 'at fair value through profit gr loss’
are recorded in the period in which these arise.

Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for on frade date i.e. the date on which the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

514 Related party transactions

Transac{ions and contracts with the related parties are carried out at an arm'’s length price determined in accordance with conjparable
uncontrolled price method, except in rarely extreme circumstances, subject to the approval of the Board, where it is in the intgrests of
the company to do so. Parties are said to be related if they are able to influence the operating and financial decisions of the company.

5145 Dividend and transfer of reserves

Dividend and transfers among reserves declared after reporting date are treated as post statement of financial positien non-gdjusting
events hence do not qualify for recognition in these financial statements. These transfers are, therefore, recorded in the next|period’s
financial statements.

516  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital represents the face value of shares that have been issued. Any trarEsaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from share capital, net of any related income tax benefits, if any. Retained
earnings include all current and prior period profits.

517 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss, as |he case
rnay be, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average nymber of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. The Company does not account for iFe effect
of potential ordinary shares while calculating dilutive loss per share in accordance with the requirements of the IAS 33 'Earr|ings per
Share'.

518 Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transacticns and cther events, other than changes resultjng from
transactions with shareholders in their capacity as sharehalders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components off profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense, including
reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by approved accounting standargs

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
] PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Rupees
Operating fixed assets - tangible 13,736,786 16,189,925
Advance against vehicles 5,500,000 5,900,000
19,236,786 21,689,925
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7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

November 30, 2023
’ . Block Chain Accounting Operational Total
Note Software software software
Rupees
As at July 1, 2023
Cost | 361,967,362 - y 143,136 40,000 362,150 498
Accumulated amortization - (97,342) (20,999) (118,341)
Net book value 361,967,362 45,794 19,001 362,032,157
As at November 30, 2023
Opening net book value 361,967,362 45,794 19,001 362,032,1p7
Charge for the period 21 - (4,085) (1,675) (5,760)
Closing net book value 361,967,362 41,709 17,326 362,026,397
As at November 30, 2023
Cost 361,967,362 143136 40,000 362,150,498
Accumulated amortization - (101,427) (22,674) (124,1P1)
Net hook value 361,967,362 41,709 17,326 362,026,3p7
Amortization rate per annum (%) - 10% 10%
June 30, 2023
Block Chain Accounting Operational Total
Software software software
- —Rupees-———
As at July 1, 2022
Cost 361,967,362 143,136 40,000 362,150,468
Accumulated amortization - (87,528) (16,999) (104,527)
Net book value 361,967,362 55,608 23,007 362,045971
As at June 30, 2023
QOpening net book value - -
Additions - at cost 361,967,362 55,608 23,001 362,045,971
Charge for the year 21 - (9,814) (4,000) (13.914)
Closing net book value 361,967,362 45,784 19.001 362,032,157
As at June 30, 2023
Cost 361,967,362 143,136 40,000 362,150,498
Accumulated amaortization - (97.342) (20,899) (118,341)
Net book value 361,967,362 45,794 19,001 362,032 157
Amortization rate per annum (%) - 10% 10%

7.1 On March 31, 2022, the Company had entered into an agreement with Messrs. LSE Capital Limited, an associated company whereby|the
parties mutually agreed the digital platform developed by the said associated company shall be deemed o fall under the ownership offthe
company and shall always belong to and vest with L.

As per aiorernentioned agreement, the company was required to pay an aggregate consideration amounting to Rs. 704 million forf the
right to use and own digital platform plus its associated goodwill with effect from January 01, 2022 (effective date) over a period of fiext
five and a half year (5.5 years) comprising irregular installments per vear, the present value for which as at June 30, 2022 amount tc|Rs.
362 million.

7.2 The Block Chain software is considered as a single cash generating unit. The company performed its annual impairment legt in
November 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023. The recoverable amount of the assel of Rs. 1,110.643 million as at November 30, 2023 and|Rs.
1 110.643 million as at June 30, 2023 has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash tiow projections from financial
budgets approved by Board of Directors covering a five-year period. The pre-tax disceunt (WACC) rate applied to cash flow projectfons
Is 26 58% and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate that is the same as the long-term average
growth rale for economy. It was concluded that the fair value less costs of disposal cannot be estimated, therefore, value in use has been
compared with the carrying amount. As a resell of this analysis. the management has not recognized any impairment charge.

Key assuimplions used In discounted cashflows calculations
The calcuiation of value In use for CGU is most sensitive to the following assumplions.
= Discount rates

- Growth rates used (o extrapolate cashflows beyond the forecast period.

7.2 The amortzation is allocateo to operating and administrative expenses {(Refer Note 21).




Discount rates

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to the Block Chain Software taking into consideration the
time value of meney and individual risks of the underlying asset that hava not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The disdount
rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company which is derived from its weighted average cost of cipiiaf
(WACC). The WACC fakes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by
the investors.

Growth rates

Growth rale estimates are used to extrapolate cashflows beyond the five-year forecast period are based on GOP rates publishdd In
"Economic Survey of Pakistan 2022 lo 2023"

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
8 LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note 2@ = oo Rupees--—-—-——
Security deposit against:
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 200.000 200 930

Rental premises

Yagoon Trading Company 1,685,400 1,685 400
ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited

280,000 280,000
Topline securities 18,066 18 966
2,184,366 2,184,166
2 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Associated undertaking
Modaraba Al Mali Strategic Holding 91 138,418,070 85,328,551
9.1 Modaraba Al Mali Strategic Holding
Balance as at July 01, 85,328,551 83,836,944
Investment acquired during the period - cost 50,000,000
Post tax ghare of profit / (loss) for the period / year 3,089,519 (366,924)
Post tax share of other comprehensive income for the period / year - 1.858.931
3,089,519 1,491,607
138,418,070 85,328,951
Number of certificates of Rs. 10 each 12,943,805 7,943,905
investmenl as percentage of the total paid-up certificate capital
of the Modaraba certificates 14.25% 10.00%

This represents the value of the Modaraba cerificates held by the Company, which is calculated under the equity method as fthe
Company holds 14 25% (June 30, 2023: 10%) stake in the Medaraba. During the period, the company has acquired 5,000,000 right
certificates of Modaraba at Rs. 10 per certificate against the Modaraba right offer on July 10, 2023 through the conversion of its
rmusharaka finance facility previously been provided to the Modaraba Al Mali (Note 12). The carrying value has been determined on fthe
pasis of fhe folal value of the Modaraba as per its unaudited (June 30, 2023: audited) financial statements for the pericd enged
November 30, 2023, without taking into consideration the market value of the same.

Modaraba Al-Mali is a multipurpose and perpetual Modaraba floated on July 8, 1887. It is being managed by LSE Capital {(Formerly Agset
Plex Limited). The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Modaraba is relocated to 505, 5th
floor, LSE Plaza, Kashmir-Edgerton Road. Lahore, in the province of Punjab.

Since, the LSE Capital Limited, a management company of the Modaraba is also holding 35% of the share capital of the compahy,
therefere. the comparnies are associated of each other as per the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards The
cormpany is also an associated undertaking of the Modaraba Al Mali as per the Companies Act, 2017 owing to common directorships in
the Modaraba and its management company.

Ihe summarized financial information in respect of Modaraba Al Mali is set out below. The summarized financial infarmation represeits
the amounts as shown in the assaociate's unaudited {June 30 2023 audited) financial statements for the respective penods.

[C; v"av,
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November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
memmemaeme = RUPEES e memeenn
Current assets 266,844,267 203,832,784
Non-current assets 1,297,755,836 1,264,130,055
Current liabilities (255,275,713) (304,011,708)
Naon-current liabilities (48,719,568) (48,715,568)
Income 29,964,141 11,671,876
Post tax profit from continuing operations 26,055,778 9,429,620
Post-tax loss from discontinued operation - (13.098,1160)
Profit / (loss) for the year 26,055,778 (3,668,340)
Other comprehensive inceme for the year & 18,581,776
Total comprehensive income for the year 26,055,778 14,913,236
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the
interest in the Modaraba Al Mali recognized in the financial statements:
Net assets of the associate 1,260,604,822 1,115,231 563
Proportion of the Group's ownership 14.25% 10%
Interest of company in net assets of associate 179,670,814 111,544,367
QOther adjustments (including prior years) (20,637,618) (5.600,690)
Apportionment of share of profit of associate - prior years (20,615,126) (20,615,126)
Carrying amount of the Company’s interest in associate 138,418,070 85,328,951
TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD AND UNSECURED 16,580,434 16,469,132
It represents amount due from various parties which is past due but not impaired. These relate to
a number of independent customers and corporate parties from whom there is no recent history
of default The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:
Upto 1 month 6,045,984 7,252 8430
1 to 6 months 7,687,684 8 655 456
€ months to 1 year 2,846,766 550,846
16,580,434 16,469,132
These include balance receivable from the following related parties:
Associated companies
LLSE Proptech Limited 161,440 25,400
LSE Ventures Limited 161,440 25,000
LSE Capital Limited 369,183 326,983
Ensmiie Limited 1,191,250 4680.(00
Metatech Trading Limited, Ex-associate 211,904
Qilboy Energy Limited, Ex-associate 236,540
2,331,757 836,983
These balances are past due but not impaired and are within the age bracket of 1 to 6 months.
The year end balance being the highest aggregate balance due from these related parties at the
end of any month during the period.
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - measured at
Fair value through profit or loss
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund
Balance as at July 01, 226,454 1,844 457
Invastment made during the period / year z 45,054,846
Redemption during the period / year - (47,000,400)
Unrealized gain on re-measuremant of investment at fair value 2,765 300,472
Dividend reinvested during the period / year, net of tax 17,058 26,669
Balance as at November 30, / June 30, 246,277 226,454
Number of units 2,232 2,432
v
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November 20, June 30,
2023 2023
Natey |, e --Rupees------==---
ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances to staff - secured and considered good 12.1 1,488,488 -
Musharaka finance to related party - associated concemn
Madaraba Al Mali - unsecured and considered good 12.2 - 50,000.000
Accrued income - Musharaka finance 123 - 5,811,644
Prepayments 590,147 1.118,057
2,078,635 57,929,701

ordinary course of business as per their employment terms and will be recovered in due course of time. These include Rs. 790,000 (Ju
30; Nil) on account of outstanding balance of advance given to one executive. The year end balance being the highest aggrega
balance of advance due from the executive at the end of any month during the period.

These are secured against retirement benefits - employees’ provident fund. These interest free advances are given to employees in k:E

days to meet its working capital requirements. It was unsecured and carried profit rate @ & months Kibor + 2% per annum. This facil
along with profit was stated to be recovered in full on maturity. As per the mutually ag reed terms between the parties. no profit after t
tenor of 276 days was to be charged by the company on the ouistanding balance of musharaka finance due from the associgigd
concern. During the period, this facility amount has been transferred to investment in associate and classified as equity investment in the
said associated concern. (Note 9).

This represented musharaka finance facility extended to the above named listed Modaraba in the sum of Rs, 50 million for a tenor of 2}6

This represents profit receivable from Modaraba Al Mali, an associated concern, on the musharaka finance facility extended to the sgid
parly as disclosed in Note 12.1 above. This balance has been adjusted during the period.

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
NGy & - | ecleanEey Rupees----------

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT
Advance income tax
Balance as at July 01, 131 14,726,976 3,303,730
Tax deducted at source 9,247,625 21,121,248
Provision for taxation 24 (4,586,445) (2,698,002)
Balance as at November 30, / June 30, 19,388,156 14,726,976
This includes Rs, 13.126 million as tax deducted at source in the name of the company in the capacity of
trustee for holding securities of Ghani Chemical Industries on behalf of Modaraba Al Mali for trading
purposes. The remaining balance of this amount is payable to the Modaraba Al Mali at the reporting
date (Refer Note 18.2).
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 260,120 350,3p4
Cash at bank in:

Current account 120,746 249,750

Saving accounts 14.1 383,666 1,464 725

504,412 1,714 475
764,532 2 064 869

These saving bank accounts carry profit rates ranging from 19.45% to 20.50% (June 30, 2023; 12.24% to 19.45%) per annum

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital

November 30, June 30, November 30, June 30,
2023 2023 2023 2023
Number of shares cmcnmmmnnnm—— RUPEES ————e—m———
60,000,000 : G0.00D.OOO_ Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 600,000,000 600,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Number of shares rnireeeaee- RUPEES ———=-= gl

52.266. 777 52 266,777 Ordinary shares ol Fs. 10 cach, fully 522 667,768 522,667,768

paid n cash
( s




15.4

16

16.1

16.2

17

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
The sharcholding structure of the Company is as under: === -- Number -----eeeeees
Name of shareholders Yoa shareholdin
InfoTech (Private) Limited 40.90% 21,378,842 21,378,842
LSE Capital Limited (Formerly Asset Plex Limited) 35.10% 18,347,472 18,347 412
LSE Ventures Limited (Formerly LSE Financial Services Limited) 9.99% 5,221,973 5,221,873
ISE Towers REIT Management Company 9.00% 4,704,480 4,704 480
Others 5.00% 2,614,010 2614010
100% 52,266,777 52,266,717
The sharehoiders are enfitled to cast vote proportionate of the paid up value of shares carrying
voting rights and have mplied rights to appoint any person on the board of the company. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
---------- -- Rupees -------u---=
LEASE LIABILITY
Balance as at July 01, 9,778,600 12,983,8/18
Add: Right of use asset acquired during the period / year - -
Less: Payments made during the period / year (1,526,732) (3,205,218)
Balance as at Movember 30, / June 30, §,251,8638 9,778.,6p0
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities (4,097,710) (3.819.1p7)
4,154,158 5,959,493
This represents office premises located at Karachi and Islamabad acquired under a lease
arrangement with landiords for a lease term of 2 years and 3 years respectively. These lease
arrangements have a renewal option for a further period of lease and the company intends to
exercise its option to use the underlying asset for another period of lease terms. Present value of
minimum lease payments was discounted at an interest rate implicit in lease which equals to an
interest rate of approximately 10.07% (June 30, 2023: 10.07%) per annum. Taxes, utilities and
repairs are to be borne by the company. This facility is secured against the security deposit paid
to the landlord as disclosed in Note 8 of these financial statements.
Malurity analysis - contractual undiscounted cashflows
Less than one year 4,745,756 4,632,032
One to five years 4,500,990 6,526,175
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 9,246,746 11,158,207
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liability in respect of taxable temporary differences
Cepreziation on Right of usa asset 2,030,273 2463015
Amortization of inlangible assets 8,045,736 6.296.429
Share of profit and othier comprehensive income in associate 1,346,853 883425
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of short term investments 415 45,0471
11,423,277 9,687,140
Deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary differences
Depreciation an property and equipment (968,501) (900.825)
Lease liatility (2,393,042) (2.835.194)
(3,361,543) (2,736,319)
Deferred tax liability as at November 30, / June 30, 8,061,734 5,951,421
Less: Balance as at July 01, 5,951,421 3,438,401
Less: Deferred tax attributable to comprehensive income - 278,180
Deferred tax expense charged in the statement of profit or loss 2,110,313 2,232,940




17.1 The reconciliation in this head of account is as follows:

£ ;;I: o i i Recognized in i Rn_éoanad in Balanck as_a!‘
ey Rocognized in othar Balance as at Recognized in ather
at July 01, i : . November 30,
2022 profit or loss comprehensive June 30, 2022 prafit or loss comprehensive 2033
Depracistion on property and equipment ar3gie (1.274,441) 2 (900,525) (67,576) (968 501)
Beprecation on Right of use assct 3,501,598 (1.038,581) - 2,463,015 (432,742) 2030273
Amantization of intangible assets 2,622,260 3,673,969 - 6,296,229 1,743,507 8,945,736
Share of profit and other comprehensive - i y . 4
9 46,
income in associate 659 684 {55,039) 278,780 B83,425 463,428 1 853
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of .
G ] s 4
shart torm investments 47,552 {2,481) 45,071 (44 B5G) 15
Lease habiiity (3,765,307; 828.513 - (2,835.784) 442,752 > (2.993,042)
3,439,701 2202840 275,780 5,951,421 2,110,313 8,061,734

17.2 Deferied fax assets on account of unused tax losses amounting to Rs. 9.300 million (June 30, 2023. Rs. 9.847 million) have ndt been
recognized in these financial statements as the timing of generalion of taxable profits in the foreseeable future is not certain,

November 30, June RO,
2023 2028
Note Rupees
18  ACCURED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities 18.1 8,733,796 6,74p,892
Payable to SECP against annual fee 2,000,000 4516473

Due to related parly - associated undertaking
Wodaraba Al Mali 18.2 8,734,284 13,12p,928
19,468,079 24,388,293

18.1 These include centribution to staff provident fund amounting to Rs, 253,786 (June 30, 2023: Rs. 428,879) which have been depcs|led in
the bank account of the fund after the reporting date within the stipulated period of time as laid in the Companies Act, 2017

18.2 This represents balance amounts payable to the above named related party on account of tax withheld in the name of the compapy for
holding the custody of securities of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited for trading in the name of the Modaraba as a trustee. This bdlance
is unsecured, interest free and payable in due course of time.

18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMEMNTS
9.1 Contingencies
There were no known material contingencies of the company as at the reporting date (June 30, 2023: Nil).

18.2 Commitments
There were no capital and other cormmitments of the company as at the reporting date (June 30, 2023: Nil)

November 30, June 3p.
2023 2023
Note Rupees
200 OPERATING INCOME

Trusteeship business 20.2 34,726,828 79,830|642
Custodizl business 203 4,547,313 11,368|785
Share registrar income 204 2,559,976 29161471

Data develepment and support services 20.5 7,000,000 =
Cebt securities trustee income . 2086 1,000,000 4,0271434
49,834,117 96,143]332

20.1  Sirdh sales tax on 1evenue charged during the year amounted to Rs. 6 478 million (June 30, 2023: Rs 7.383 miliian),

20.2 During the period, the Company provided trusteeship services to 35 mutual funds (June 30, 2023: 34 The remuneration has been
receivad from these funds at different rates in accordance with respective agreements duly exccuted with parties.

20.3  During the period, the Company provided custodial services to 70 (June 30, 2023: 80) clients. Custodia! fee has been charged as pef the

agreements entered into with such clients.

20.4 During the period, the Company provided share registrar services to 35 (June 30, 2023: 23) clients. Fee has been charged as| per
agreements with such clients.




20.5 During the period, the company provided cloud data development and support services to 1 (June 30, 2023: None) client. Data
development and support fee has been charged as per the agreement entered into with such client.

20.6 During the period, the Company provided debt securities trustee services to 2 (June 30, 2023 4) clients. Fee has been charged a$ per
agreements with such clients.

Nevember 30, Junea 31,
2023 2022
Note =R UpEES§ oo - -
21  OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and benefits 211 23,356,618 54,494/861
Directors' meeting fee 245 s 1,000(000
Auditors' rernuneration 21.3 400,000 1,100{000
Advertisement and marketing expense 565,541 3,888|745
Computer and techniczl support expenses 1,208,532 2664|938
Custody charges 140,778 315(563
Utilities 1,928,594 1,881|621
Entertainment 1,141,926 1.429|836
Insurance 139,695 308{780
Travelling and conveyance 1,796,896 1,004}267
Postage, photocopy and telegram 109,413 171]542
Rent, rates and taxes T 7
Repairs and maintenance 1,532,237 715,562
Staticnary, stamps and notary public expenses 564,455 3541680
Legal and professional charges & other fees 214 8,035,540 9,4131024
Miscellaneous expenses 70,834 3671511
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 6.3 - 576384
Balance receivable written off - 1,976(662
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 6.1 2,633,739 B8 5821842
Amortization of intangible assels 7 5,760 131814
43,630,558 88,831(123
21.1  This includes an amount of Rs. 625,786 (June 30, 2023: Rs. 1,484,005) in respect of
contribution towards staff provident fund, related party
21.2 Meeling fee was paid lo the Non-executive directars of the company for attending
corgorate meetings of the company at rates as approved by the Eoard of Directors.
21.3 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee 350,000 1,000{000
Out of pocket expenses 50,000 100000
400,000 1,100{000

214 The breakup of this head of account is as follows:

Fees and subscription 148.539 864,822
Statutory fess to SECF 2.397.779 4,629,837
Legal and nrofessional charges 5,489,222 3.914,365

8,035,540 9,414,024

22 OTHER INCOME
Income from {inancial assets

Dividend income . | 20,068 31375
Profit on savings bank accounts 373,730 2,363,563

Frofit on musharaka finance
Modaraha Al Mali - associated undertaking - 6.811.644
393,798 9.204 582

23 FINANCE COST i 0
Markup on;

Lease liability against right of use asset 384,729 1,163,595

24 PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Current year - final tax regime

Tax on services 4,475,054 7.010.823
Tax on dividend 3,008 706
Capitai gain tax - 21663

; 4,478,063 7.031.192

Current year - normal tax regime 108,382 2,660,810
. 13 4,586,445 9,693 002
Deferred taxation 17 2,110,313 2232 940
6,696,758 11,934,942

1&1'{%
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The company has carried forward taxable loss for the period amounting to Rs. 32.069 million (June 30, 2023: Rs. 33.8955 million),

therefore, no provision for taxation under normal tax regime is applicable. Further, alternative corporate tax is also not applicable |n the
instant case. However, the company has accounted for provision for taxation under final tax regime as applicable to the compapy for
income derived from services as per the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. In addition to this, the income derived from |listed
securities and other scurces is charged to tax at the applicable tax rates.
As the company has recognized provision for taxation under final tax regime during the period therefore, reconciliation of tax expgnses
and product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not applicable in the instant case
November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit after taxation attributable to the company's owners Rupees 2,608,154 5,354.802
Weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding during the peried / year Numbers 52,266,777 50,031,154
Earnings per share - basic Rupees 0.05 011
November 30, June 30,
2023 2023
Restated
Rupees
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic & diluted)
Issued ordinary shares at July 1 52,266,777 11,114,000
Bonus issue - 35,112.315
Effect of right issue - 3,804,839
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at November 30, / June 30 52,266,777 50,031,154
The figure for diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as the company has nol issued any instrument fhich
would have an impact on basic earnings per share when exercised.
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive Gfficer
and executives are as follows:
[ Chicf Executive Officer 1l Executives |
November 30, June 30, MNovember 30, June 30,
2023 2023 2023 2023
Rupees Rupces
Managerial remuneration - - 3,277,291 7.7149.91pP
Special pay - 781,818 1,285 855
Provident fund - 272,998 623, 151
House renl allowance - 1,474,776 3.487.112
Utilities = 327,723 FrA 900
Medical - 73,000 200,213
Bonus = - 296,00
Fuei allowance - 215,995 702,039
- 6,423,601 15,119,198
Number of persons 1 9 10
No remuneration is paid to the Chief executive officer and executive directors of the company during the periad / year. In addition 1§ this,
the use of company's maintained venicle or benefit of any kind is not being given to any executive director of the company.
Meeting fee was paid to all the executive and non executive directors of the company in the comparative pericd as approved by the
Directors of the company
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and their close family members, major shareholders of the Company and
staff provident fund. Transactions with related parties are on arm's length basis. Remuneration and benefits to executives g¢f the
Compary are in accordance with the terms of the employment while contribution to the provident fund is in accordance with staff sérvice
rules. Remuneration to chief executive officer and executives is disclosed in note 26 to these financial siatements. The balance$ with
related parties are disclosed in respective noles to these finarcial statements. Other significant transactions carried out with re¢lated

parties are as follows:

\wb>




Name of the party

Madaraba Al Mali

LSE Capital Limited

InfeTech (Private} Limited

ISE Towers REIT Management

Company Limited

LSE Ventures Limited (Formerly LSE

Financial Services Limited)

LSE Proptech Limited

Ensmile Limited

Metatech Trading Limited

Oilboy Energy Limited

LSE Financial Services Limited

Muhammad Nasir Mirza

Dr. Yusuf Zafar

Nasear Ahmad Akhtar

Muhammad Iqgbal

Shoaib Mir

Farrukh Younus Khan

Muhammad Khalid Faraog

Syed Mukhtar Hussain

Malecha Humayun

Aftab Ahmad Chaudhary

Relationship with the
company

Associated concern

Associated company

Associated company

Shareholder

Associated company

Associated company

Associated company

Ex-associated company

Ex-associated company

Ex-associated company

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Basis of relationship

Associate of associated
company

35.10% shareholding in the
company

45,90% shareholding in the
company

9% sharehelding In  the
company

8.99% sharehoiding in the
company and associale of
Modaraba Al Mali

Associate of Modaraba Al
Mali

Associate of Modaraba Al
Mali

Ex-associate of Modaraba Al
Mali

Ex-associate

Ex-associate of Modaraba Al
Mali

Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key managemeni personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key managemnent personnel
Key management personnel
Key managerment personnel
Key management personnal

Key rnanagement personne!

e,

Nature of transaction

Share of (loss) / profit from
associate

Share of other comprehensive
income from associate

Investment made in the
certificate capital of associate

Musharaka finance given to
associate

Legal & professional charges
berne by the associate

Adjustment of long term liability
against intangible assets

Issuance of share capital

Share registrar  services

pravided to the party
Issuance of share capital

Issuance of share capital

Issuance of share capital

Share registrar sorvicos
provided to the party
Share registrar services
provided to the party
Share registrar services
provided to the party

Cloud data development and
suppert services provided to the
party

Share registrar services
provided to the parly
Share registrar services

provided to the party

Debt securities trustee scrvices

provided to the party

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

Meeting fee paid to director

eeting fee paid to dirgclor

2023 2022
R

3,089,519 (386{924)

> 1,858]531
50,000,000 o

- 50,000,000
2,420,000 I

- (362,567, 768)

= 127304097

46,624 184,000

= 166,481, 182

- 32,644,364

= 36,734,125

126,000 84 960

126,000 104,960

150,000 34,000
7,000,000 -

245,000 173,956
222,500 :

- 1,3274.434

- 124,000

- 150,000

- 50,000

- 104,000

< 100,000

= 10d.000

- 104,000

- 100,000

. 124 000

- 59,000
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29:1

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

The following information is based an un-audited financial statements of the provident fund for the period / year ended November 30,

2023 and June 30, 2023

Size of the fund - total assets
Cost of investments

Percentage of investments made
Fair value of investmenis

The investments of the fund are kept
fund.

Assets
Bank balances

November 30, June 30,
2023 2023

B --—-Rupees---—-----
4,515,913 3572157
4,515,913 3,572,157
100% 100%
4,515,913 3,572,157

in saving bank accounts maintained In the name of the staff provident
Percentage

100% 4,515,913 3,572,157

The above invesiments and placement of funds in special bank account has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of

Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The accounts department of the Company assist the Board in developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. Risk

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market canditions and the Company's activilics

The risk management policies of the

Company are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, o sct appropriate risk limits

and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. and focuses on actively securing the Company's shaort to medium-term cash floys by

minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

Financia! risk factors

The Company's aclivitics expose it lo a variely of financial risks: market rigk (including, price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit rigk and

liquidity risk. The Company's overa
potential adverse effects on the finan

Il risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mifimize
cial performance.

Risk management is camied out by the Board of Directors (the Board), The Board provides principies for averall risk management, as well as pplicies
covering specific areas such as currency risk other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's rmanagement ovgrsees
and monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies, procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framevork in
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Direclors are assisted in oversight role by the management. Management underiakes both regular

and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Directors

{a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal changes
objective of the Company's market ri

the return on risk. There are three types of market risks 1. interest raie risk. currency risk and price equily risk. These are’

(i} Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair
Currency risk arises mainly from futu
company is net exposed to currency

(ii) Other price risk
Price nsk represents the risk that the

in market prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
sk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optjmizing

value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchangg rates.
re commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencieés The
risk because the company has not entered in to any transaction in foreign currency.

fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel prices (other

than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial insjfrument
or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrurnent tradec in the market The Company is not exposed 10 commodity price risk as|well as

market price risk as the Company ha
is listed on PSX and hes a good ratin

(iii} Interest rate risk

s no investment in such instruments except for the investment in MCB Cash Management Oplimizer Funf which
Q.

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial instrumant will fluctuate because of changes in market interast raies.

The Company has no long-term int

srest-bearing assets at reporting date. The Company's interest rate risk arises from s bank balanges and

musharaka finance extended to Modaraba Al Mali. Financial instruments at variable rate expose the Company 1o cash flow interest rate risk.
Finanzial instruments with fixed interest rate expose to the Company to fair value interest rate risk. At the reporting date. the interest rale drofile of

the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was:

(U




November 30, June 30
2023 2023
Note e Rupees----—-—--=-
Floating rate instruments:
Musharaka finance - Modaraba Al Mali 122 - 50,000,po0
Bank balances - savings accounts 14.1 383,666 1,464 F25

383,666 51,464,

V25

There were no fixed interest rate bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation v
have been increased | (decreased) by Rs. 3,837 (June 30, 2023: Rs. 514,647), This analysis is prepared without taking in ac
taxation effect and applying +/- 1% discount factor on the outstanding balance of bank balances and musharaka finance reported in g
financial statements with the assumption that the balance is outstanding for the whole pericd. However, during the period the mushg
finance facility praviously extended to Modaraba Al Mali has been converted into equily investment in associate and accordingly th
no such interest rate risk to which the company is exposed fo since a material interest bearing balance has been classified as inves
in associate during the pericd against the modaraba certificates right offer.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to change in market interest rates. The effd
interest / profit rates as at November 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 for the company's financial instruments are given in the relevant
to these financial stalements.

(k) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contrg

vould
rount
hese
raka
reis

ent

ctive
hotes

ctual

obligations on 2 specified future date. To manage credit risk the Company maintains procedures covering the application for tredit
approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of these processes the
financial viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed by the competent authorities of the sales anc recpvery
departments with the approval of the BOD. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for local firade

receivables, advances, deposits, other receivables, balances with banks and other financial assets, Concentration of credit risk 3
when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause

rnses
their

abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. There aJe no

significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry sectors and / or region
carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
was as follows.

| The

date

November 30, June 3¢,
2022 2023

FINANCIAL ASSETS Note ~  ———m-eeed Rupees---—---- -t
Long term deposits B8 2,184,366 2,184 366
Trade receivables 10 16,580,434 16,469,132
Short term investments 11 246,277 224,454
Deposits and other receivables 12 1,488,488 55,811,644
Bank balances 14 504,412 1,714,475
21,003,978 77.404,071

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due not impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratiigs (if
available) or to historical information about counter party default rates. Banks and financial institutions have external credit ratings
determined by various credit rating agencies. Credit quality of customers and other receivables are assessed by reference lo hisforical
defaults rates and present ages. Banks and financial institutions have external credit ratings delermined by various credit raling aggncies

as listed below:

November 20, June 3p.
2023 2023
---------- Rupees--—--—---+
Rating :
Banks Rating
Short term | Long Terin agency
MCB Bank Limited AT+ AAA PACRA 504,412 1,714,475
MCB Cash Management - AA(f) PACRA 246,277 224,454
Optimizer 750,690 1,940,929

Exposure to credit risk - Banks

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. Due to long stgnding

business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, manacement does not expec
performance by these counterparties on their cbligations to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk 1s minimal

\Cur,
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e Trade receivables

v Gustomer is counterparty to local trade receivables against the rendering of trusteeship and custodial services. New customer is analyged
- individually for creditwarthiness before the Company's standard payment terms and conditions are offered. Credit limits are established
for each client based on internal rating criteria and reviewed regularly. Qutslanding customer receivables are regularly monitered by|the

marketing and recovery department. Due fo leng standing relations with the counterparty and high creditworthiness of customers which

are mostly corporate parties with high financial standing and good credit history, the overall credit risk of the Cempany is at a acceptable

low level. The analysis of ages of trade receivables of the Company as at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 10 to these finagcial

statements.

Concentration of credit risks
Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are pasl due more than 30 days are still collectable in full based on nistgrical
payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these
counter parties and after giving due consideration to their creditworthiness, the management does not expect non-performance by these
counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Furthermare, almost all these balances have been recovered in full subseguept 1o
the date of statement of financial position. Accordingly, the credit risk related to trade receivables is minimal as the chances of expdcted
credit ioss is not applicable in the instant case in practical scenario.

{c ) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are sattlgd by
delivering cash or another financial assets, or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to the Company.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding to an adesquate amount of comnpitted
obligations of the business. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always [nave
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. under both nermal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable lossps or
risking damage to the company’s reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash. At November 30, 2023, the Company had Rs. 0.765 million (June 30,
2023 Rs 2085 million) of cash and bank balances. Further, the Company also has strong financial suppert from its sharefolder
companies. Based on the above, management believes the liguidity risk to be low.

Contractuat maturities of financial liabilities:

As at November 30, 2023 Within one Over1tob More thdn 5

year years years
Note Rupees

Lease liability 16 4,097,710 4,154,158 -

Accrued and other liabilities 18 19,468,079 - 5
23,565,789 4,154,158 -

As at June 30, 2023

Lease liabity 16 3,819,107 5,859,493 -

Accrued and other lizbilities 18 24 388,293 - -
28,207,400 5,859,493 -

262 Fair value of financial instruments
Fair valua is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between parket
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that prige is directly
observable or estimaled using another valuation technigue.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement to
curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exghange
dealer, broker, Induslry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly oceurrning market
transactions on an aim's length basis

Fair value hierarchy
Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measureq at fair
value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Cqmpany
has classified s financial instruments into the following three levels. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table:

‘ Recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totsl I

Rupees o
Financial asset as at November 30, 2023
Fair value through profit or loss 246,277 - 5 216,277

Financial asset as at June 30, 2023
Fair vaiue through profit or loss 226,454 - - 2p6,454

r%
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Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and availabld for
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets feld
by tha Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not {raded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter derivativeg) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-spegific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the financial instrument is classified under Ipvel
3. The carrying amount less impairment provision of irade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. [The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current m3 rket
interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial instruments.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes the use of quoted market prices.

Recognized fair value measurements - Non-Financial Assets
There was no non-financial asset as at November 30, 2023 (June 30, 2023: Nil) for the recognized fair value measurement.

29.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate their fair values.

29.4  Financial instruments by categories Investment at
Amortized fair value Total
cost through profit or
loss
As at November 30, 2023 Note Rupees
Financial Assets as per statement of financial position
Long term deposits 8 2,184,366 - 2,184 /366
Trade receivables 10 16,580,434 - 16,580,434
Short term investments 1" - 246 277 2486277
Advances and other receivables 12 1,488,488 - 1,488/488
Cash and Bark balances 14 764,532 - 764)532
21,017,820 248,277 21,264/098
Amortized
cost
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupeds
Lease liability 16 8,251,868
Accrued and ather liabilities 18 19,464,079
27,719,047
Investment at
Amortized fair value Tota
cost through profit or
loss
As at June 30, 2023 i RUPRE St
Financial Assets as per statement of financial pesition
Long term deposits 8 2,184,366 - 2,184,366
Trade receivables 10 16,469,132 - 16,469,132
Short term investments 41 - 226.454 226454
Advances and other receivables 12 56,811,644 - 56,811,644
Cash and Bank balances 14 2,064,869 . 2,064.869
77,530,011 226454 77,758,485
Amortizeg coﬂ
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupeps
Lease liability L 9,77B.600
Accrued and other liabilities 18
24388293
34,166,893

\(a v,




30 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- Capital Liabilities Reserves
- Share capital Share Long term
premium payable Lease liability Accumulated Total
against loss
ety RUPEES. . ceesiisssssraasiansiannessioiessiassniianssssrbbaneansduasanes
As at July 1, 2023 522,667,768 - - 9,778,600 (133,951) §32,312}417

Changes from financing cash flows :
Repayment of lease finance [ Al = ”_ - I (1,525,732}[] - 1 (1,526[732)

Total changes from financing cash flows - - - (1,526,732) - (1,526{732)
Other changes
Profit for the period - - - - 2,608,154 2 608154
Other comprehensive income - - 1 - o 4
- - = < 2,608,154 2508154
Balance as at November 30, 2023 522,667,768 - - 8,251,868 2,474,203 1 __533,393 839
Capital Liabilities Reserves
Share capital | |Share premium Long term
payable oo Accumulated Total
= liabilit
against Lehas Ry loss
intangibles
_______ T e L L L e e e T LLLe] e
Al duly, 2022 111,100,000 48,900,000 362,067,768 12983818 (7071504)  528.58p.082
Changes from financing cash tlows
Repayment of lease finance | =4} =10k ~ [ a5 [ [ (3.204.218)|
Total changes from Pnancing cash flows - - - (3,205.218) - (3.20%,218)
Other changes
'ssuance of share capital £60.444,620 - - - - 60,444 620
Share premium on issuance of shares - 302,223,148 = . . 302 223148
lesuance of bonus snares against share premium 351.123.148 || (251,123,148} - - .
Cenversion of long term liability against infangibles into equity - - {362,667,758) {362 aof 7T68)
Profit for the year = = 5.357.802 5,357,802
Other comprénenaive inceme - - oy | - 1,579,751 1,579,751
411 587 788 (48,900,000) (362,667,768) = 6,937,553 B.93[.553
Balance as at June 30, 2023 522 667 768 - - 8778 600 (133,951) 532,312,417

31 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Hoard's policy 15 to maintain an sfficient capital base so as lo maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the [future
development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as aperating income
divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitars the level of dividends to ordinary sharehclders. The Company’s objgctives
when managing capital are:

a 1o :iafeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits foq other
stakehalders, and

b)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders, while at the same time carrying risk exposure acceptatle to them,

Az Company nanages s capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and to maintain aptimal capital struclure to reduce the cost of ¢ apital.
in order ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividands paid to shareholders, 1ssue new shargs and
sther means commensurating to the circumstances.

Movember 30, June J0.

2023

32 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of emplayees during the period / year were as follows:
At pened end . 58 60
Awverage during the penod | year 58 42

33  AUTHORIZATION FORISSUE
These financial statements ware approved and authorized for issue on __3& ~Df ’Aﬁ '4 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

34 GENERAL

34.1 Fiqures of the corresponding period have been rearranged ! regrouped where considered necessary to achieve beller presentatign and
understanding However, no materiai reclassification has been made in the corresponding figures

34.2 Figuresin nancizl stalements have been rounded off to nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated

¥ E

er Director

Chief Executt
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